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Mr. Shozo Nagao 
County of Hawaii 
Fire Department 
466 Kinoole Street 
Hilo, Hawaii 96720 

Nagao: 

November 5, 1981 

Special Permit No. 78-310 (LUC 396) 
Construction of Water Storage Tanks 

Tax Map Key 9-2-31:19 

Please be informed that the Planning Director is recommending 
to the Planning commission that the above-captioned Special Permit 
be nullified as a result of non-compliance with the performance 
time condition. 

This matter will be disoussed by the Planning Commission at 
its meeting on Wednesday, November 18, 1981, at 10:00 a.m. in the 
Police Department's Building A Conference Room, Public Safety 
Building, South Hilo, Hawaii. You may present your case to the 
Planning Commission at that time if you so desire. 

Enclosed for your information is a copy of the Planning 
Commission's agenda. 

Should you have any questions, please feel free to contact 
Norman Hayashi of this office at 961-8288. 

smn 

Enclosure 

cc: State Land Use Commission 

~s~~ 
Sidney M. Fuke 
Planning Director 



PLANNING DEPARTMENT COUNTY OF HAWAII 

25 AUPUNI STREET HILO, HAWAII 96720 
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BEFORE THE LAND USE COMMISSION 

OF THE STATE OF HAWAII 

In the Matter of the ) SP78-310 
Petition for Special Permit ) 
of COUNTY OF HAWAII FIRE ) COUNTY OF HAWAII 
DEPARTMENT ) FIRE DEPARTMENT 

) _________________) 

This is to certify that this is a true and correct copy of the 
Decision •nd Order on fife in the office of the State Land Use 
Commission, Honolulu, Hc1waii. 

NOV 211978 
Date 

FINDINGS OF FACT, CONCLUSIONS OF LAW 
AND DECISION AND ORDER 



BEFORE THE LAND USE COMMISSION 

OF THE STATE OF HAWAII 

In the Matter of the ) SP78-310 
Petition for Special Permit ) 
of COUNTY OF HAWAII FIRE ) FINDINGS OF FACT, 
DEPARTMENT-- ) CONCLUSIONS OF LAW AND _______________) DECISION AND ORDER 

The Land Use Commission of the State of Hawaii 

having duly considered the entire record in the above­

entitled matter_, makes the following--findings of -fact -and­

conclusions of law: 

FINDINGS OF FACT 

1. The Petition for Special Permit was filed 

by the County of Hawaii Fire Department, to allow the 

construction of water storage tanks for volunteer fire 

fighting purposes -on approximately one (1) acre of land 

situated within the State Land Use Agricultural District 

at Hawaiian - Ocean- View Estates--Subdivision, Kahuku, Kau, ___ 

Hawaii. - -

2. The subject property is located on the 

northeastern corner of the intersection of Ocean View Parkway 

and Orchid Circle Mauka, in the Hawaiian Ocean View Estates 

Subdivision, Tax Map Key 9-2-31: 19. 

3. The Petitioner proposes to construct water 

storage tanks for use as backup storage capacity for fire 

trucks serving the area. The use of an existing 384-square 

foot garage structure for parking the fire truck is also 

proposed. 



4. The County of Hawaii's General Plan Land Use 

Pattern Allocation Guide Map designates t~e subject area 

as "Orchard". Present County Zoning is Agricultural 1-acre 

(A-la) . 

5 . . The Land Study Bureau's overall master 

productivity soil rating for agricultural use is Class "E" 

or "Very Poor" for the subject site. 

6. Access -to the subject site is from both ­

Ocean View Parkway and Orchid Circle Mauka, which are 

privately owned - roads - consisting -of -oil~treated cinder_ 

surfaces with 16 feet widths. 

7. The subject property is a portion of the 

Hawaiian Ocean View Estates Subdivision which consists 

of over 10,000 individual lots. There are approximately 

150 single family dwellings situated . in zhe subdivision. 

8. The Petitioner has stated that the proposed 

use would complement the objectives of the Land Use Law 

and Regulations by providing added security and protection 

to residents of the area. 

9. The Hawaii Electric Light Company, inc., 

County Department of Public Works, State Deoartment of 

Agriculture, Department of Health and U.S.D.A. Soil 

Conservation Service had no objections to the proposed 

use. 

10. A public hearing on the Special Permit 

application was held by · the Hawaii County Planning Coro.mission 

on June 29, 1978. Fire Chief Donald Thompson and County 

Councilman Jim Dahlberg testified in support of the request. 

-2-



CONCLUSIONS OF LAW 

1. "Unusual and reasonable" uses other than those 

which are permitted in an agricultural district may be 

permitted by Special Permit pursuant to HRS Chapter 205-6, 

and the State Land Use Commission District Regulation, Part 

v. 

2. The approval of the subje.ct request would not 

be contrary to the objectives sought to be accomplished by 

the State Land Use Law and Regulations. The State Land 

Use Law and Regulations are intended to preserve, protect, 

and encourage the development of lands in the State for 

those uses - to whic~these lands :are best ~uited- in - the 

interest of public health and welfare of the people. The 

area under consideration is classified as Agricultural 

by the State Land Use Commission. The Agricultural District 

includes lands surrounded by or contiguous to agricultural 

and ancillary activities by reason of topography, soil and 

other related characteristics. According to the United 

States Department of Agriculture, Soil Conservation Service's 

Soil -Survey--Repor-t - issued- in - December---of 197 3, the subject 

area is classified as 'A'a lava. The Soil Conservation 

Service's overall capability rating for this soil type is 

Class VIII. Class VIII refers to soils that have limita­

tions that preclude their use for commercial plant9 and. 

restrict their uses to recreation, wildlife, or to water 

supply, and to aesthetic purposes. This class is the lowest 

in the Soil Conservation Service's ranking system for agri­

cultural activity. 

-3-
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Although it is still possible that some form of 

agricultural activity may be conducted o~ the subject 

property, it is concluded that approval of the subject 

request would not be contrary to the objectives of the 

State Land Use Law and Regulations given the capability 

class rating of the subject property for agricultural 

productivity. 

Further, the use of the subject property for 

non-agricultural purpose is not expected to have any adverse 

effect on the overall agricultural potential of the region 

or the County and State as the land is not presently being 

used for any agricultural activity. 

3. The proposed use will make the highest and 

best use of the land for the public welfare. The construc­

tion of the proposed storage tanks will increase the fire 

fighting capabilities of the area. It is determined that 

the use of the subject area for the proposed water tank and 

garage uses will be in the best interest of public health 

and welfare of the people, properties, and improvements of 

this portion of the County of Hawaii. 

4. The granting of this Special Permit request 

will be in accordance with the Public Facilities Element 

of the County General Plan which states as a goal: 

"To provide public facilities that 
effectively service communities 
needs and to seek ways of improving 
public service through better and 
more functional facilities which are 
in keeping with environmental and 
aesthetic concerns of the community." 

-4-



5. The proposed use will not have any significant 

adverse impact on surrounding areas. The only adverse 

impact associated with the proposed water tanks and garage 

facilities will be the visibility of these improvements 

from surrounding areas. However, the proposed improvements 

will not be out of character with the surrounding areas. 

It is determined that long term benefits from the proposed 

improvements, namely increased fire protection, will more 

than offset any adverse impact which may occur. 

6. The use described in the petition is an 

unusual and reasonable use pursuant to HRS Chapter 205-6 

and State Land Use Commission District Regulation, Part V. 

DECISION AND ORDER 

IT IS HEREBY ORDERED that Special Permit Number 

78-310, for the construction of water storage tanks on 

approximately one (1) acre of land situated within the State 

Land Use Agricultural District at Hawaiian Ocean View 

Estates Subdivision, . Kahuku, Kau, Hawaii, Tax Map Key 

9-2-31: 19, be approved subject to the following conditions: 

1. That construction commence within two (2) 

years of the effective date of approval and be completed 

within two (2) years thereafter. 

2. That all other applicable rules, regulations 

and requirements shall be complied with. 

3. That should any of the foregoing conditions 

not be met, the Special Permit may be deemed null and void. 

-5-



DATED: Honolulu, Hawaii, ~ 1, 11-zf. 

By---=--~-· -~--=---",_(_j=----
C. W. DUKE 
Chairman and Commissioner 

By~b?.P~JESCARRAS _ 
C mroissioner 

' 

B~/j~~y£lf;:/~ 
Commissioner 

By (/j .-Jff_,~ 
--~=E--=-o=-Rt=E--=-A--=s--=c=u=-A---------

Commissioner 

Comm ssioner 

-6-
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BEFORE THE LAND USE COMMISSION 

OF THE S.TATE OF HAWAII 

In the matter of the ) 
Petition for Special Permit) 
of COUNTY OF HAWAII FIRE ) SP78-310 
DEPARTMENT ) COUNTY OF HAWAII 

) FIRE DEPARTMENT 

CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE 

! 
I hereby certify that a copy of the Land Use 

Commissionts Decisionand -.Order was served -upon the 

following by certified mail: 

Sidney Fuke, Planning Director 
Hawaii Planning Department 
25 Aupuni Street 
Hilo, Hawaii 96720 

Donald Thompson, Chief 
County -of Hawaii Fire Department 
466 Kihoole Street 
Hilo, Hawaii 96720 

Dated: Honolulu, Hawaii, this 21st day of November, 1978 . 

.. 

Land Use Commission 
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STATE 01: BAWA.II 
LAND USE COMMISSION 

Minutes of Meeting 

State Conference Rooms A & B 
3060 Eiwa Street 

Lihue, Kauai 

August 15, 1978 - 9:30 a.m. 

COMMISSIONERS PRESENT: Charles Duke; Chairman 
Shinichi Nakagawa, Vice Chairman 
James Carras 
Shinsei . Miyasato 
George Pascua 
Carol Whitesell 
Edward Yanai 

COMMISSIONERS ABSENT: Colette Machado 
Mitsuo Oura 

STAFF PRESENT: Gordan Furutani, Executive Officer 
Daniel Yasui, Planner 
Allan Kawada, Deputy Attorney General 
Dora Horikawa, Chief Clerk 

Ray Russell, Court Reporter 

The meeting was called to order by Chairman Duke. 

ACT'l'ON 

SP76-248 - CITY & COUNTY OF HONOLULU, BUILDING DEPARTMENT 
REQUEST FOR A ONE YEAR TIME EXTENSION TO COMMENCE CONSTRUCTION 
OF A FIRE AND POLICE TRAINING FACILITY AT WAIPIO PENINSULA, OAHU 

Mr. Daniel Yasui, staff planner, presented a resume of the 
staff memorandum and pointed out the -area on the map. 

In response to a request for clarification, Mr. Kawada ex­
pressed his opinion that the subject request was for a time 
extension of one year to commence construction and did not 
refer to the 5-year completion date of the project. 

Chairman Duke suggested that .the Commission add another 
condition to the Special Permit clearly stating that the 
project be completed within 5 years from original ·date of 
approval. It was h±s ~eeling that a firs and police· training 
center was a much needed facility. He criticized the lack of 
funding by the City which was causing the delay in completing 
this project. 



In response to Vice Chairman Nakagawa's questions, 
Chairman Duke recalled that the great concerns raised by the 
community regarding noise, smoke, interference with TV re­
ception by the low-flying helicopteis had been addressed at 
the County level and resolved to the community's satisfaction. 

Vice Chairman Nakagawa moved that the time extension re­
quest by the City & County of Honolulu, · Docket SP76-248, be 
approved, subject to the deletion of the last sentence in the 
County's condition No. 1 which states "----The Planning Commis­
sion may, with the Land Use Commission's concurrence, extend 
the time limit if it deems that unusual circumstance warrant 
the granting of such an extension". 

Mr. Kawada counseled that he did not believe the Land 
Use Commission had the authority to delete any condition 
stipulated by the County. 

Commissioner Pascua moved to go into executive session, 
seconded by Vice Chairman Nakagawa, for the purpose of dis­
cussing the legal aspects of the motion on the floor. The 
motion was defeated with the following votes: 

Ayes: Commissioners Carras, Nakagawa, Pascua 

Nays: Commissioners Yanai, Whitesell, Miyasato, 
Chairman Duke 

Vice Chairman Nakagawa again moved that the request by 
the City & County of Honolulu, SP76-248, for a one-year time 
extension to commence construction of a fire and police 
training facility be approved. 

The Executive Officer suggested that staff could express 
the Commission's position regarding the 5-year time limit for 
completion of the project, and the concern that this project 
be expeditiously implemented in the interest and betterment of 
the community, in its communication to the City. 

Counselor Kawada noted for the record that the motion 
applied only to the commencement of the construction and in 
no way referred to the 5-year completion date. 

Commissioner Carras seconded the motion and it was una­
imously carried. 

SP78-310 - COUNTY _OF HAWAII FIRE DEPARTMENT 
SPECIAL PERMIT TO ALLOW THE CONSTRUCTION OF WATER STORAGE TANKS 
FOR VOLUNTEER FIRE FIGHTING PURPOSES AT HAWAIIAN OCEAN VIEW 
ESTATES SUBDIVISION, KAHUKU, KAU, HAWAII 

Mr. Yasui apprised the Commission of the pertinent data 
concerning the subject request and pointed out the location 
on the maps. 
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Commissioner Carras moved that the Special Permit be 
approved, subject to the conditions imposed by the Hawaii 
County Planning Commission. The motion was seconded by Vice 
Chairman Nakagawa and unanimously carried. 

SP78-311 - FRATERNAL ORDER OF EAGLES 
SPECIAL PERMIT TO ALLOW THE ESTABLISHMENT OF A FRATERNAL HOME 
AT KEAAU, PUNA, HAWAII 

A resume of the staff memorandum relevant to the subject 
request was presented by Mr. Yasui. The area was also pointed 
out on the maps. 

Commissioner Carras moved that the Special Permit be 
approved, subject to the conditions stipulated by the Hawaii 
County Planning Commission. The motion was seconded by Commis­
sioner Pascua and unanimously approved. 

SP78-312 - CASTLE & COOKE, INC. 
SPECIAL PERMIT TO ALLOW THE ESTABLISHMENT OF A WATER RESERVOIR 
SYSTEM AT WAIPIO, OAHU 

Mr. Furutani presented a summary of the staff memorandum 
and located the property on the maps and oriented it with 
various surrounding landmarks. Two exhibits were circulated; 
one of the water system master . plan and the other showing the 
landscaping and grading plans submitted by the petitioner. 
A brief explanation of the two exhibits was offered by Mr. 
Furutani. 

Vice Chairman Nakagawa moved that the Special Permit be 
approved, subject to the conditions imposed by the City Plan­
ning Commission and the 7th condition recommended by staff 
that construction of the first water reservoir commence within 
one year from the effective date of the Special Permit. · The 
motion was seconded by Commissioner Carras. 

Commissioner Whitesell went on record to indicate that 
the Commission was concerned with the overall water situation-­
the availability, the direct impact, the overdraft situation, 
etc., in the Central Oahu area. 

The motion was unanimously carried. 
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STATE OF HAWAII 
LAND USE COMMISSION 

VOTE RECORD 

SP78-310 - COUNTY OF HAWAII 
ITEM FTRE DEPARTMENT DATE__A_u~g~u~s~t_.:;;;1~5~,_,;;:1=9~7~8--____ 

STate Conference Rooms A&B 
PLACE Li bue, Kauai TIME__,9~;~3-0__._.a~--rn..._________ 

NAME YES NO ABSTAIN ABSENT 

MACHADO, .COLETTE 
X 

WHITESELL, CAROL X 

PASCUA, GEORGE R. X 

MIYASATO, SHIN~EI X 

-
CARRAS, JAMES X 

NAKAGAWA, SH-INICHI X 

OURA, MI~SUO 
X 

YANAI, EDWARD . X 

. 

: 

DUKE-, CHARLES ·· . , .. X 

M 

s 

Comments: I move that the Special Permit be approved, subject 
to the conditions imposed by the Hawaii Planning Commission. 
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STATE OF HAWAII 
LAND USE COMMISSION 

Suite 1795 
Pacific .Trade Center 

190 s. King Street 
Honolulu, Hawaii 96813 

August _8, 1978 

Mr. Sidney Fuke 
Planning Director 
Hawaii Planning Department 
County of Hawaii 
25 Aupuni Stre~t 
Hilo, Hawaii -96720 . 

Dear Mr. Fuke :· 

Enclosed is a Notice of Land Use Commission meeting and the 
Agenda for the Meeting. 

Please note that petitions 
SP78-310 - County of Hawaii Fire Department 
SP78-311 - Fraternal Order of Eagles 

will be acted on at that time. 

Should you have any questions on this matter, please contact 
this office. 

Very trqly-y-0urs, 

,,0;_/ l-- ·-7~-~~ -...j·~ ./ .I ·-L - ' /;- , ..( / , •. _ , 

,/// GORDAN _IFURUT~I 
:/ Executive Officer 

Enclosure - Agenda 



STATE OF HAWAII 
LAND USE COMMISSION 

Suite 1795 
Pacific Trade Center 

190 s. ~ing Street 
Honolulu, Hawaii 96813 

August 8, 1978 

Mr. Donald Thompson 
County of Hawaii 
Fire Department 
466 Kinoole Street 
Hilo, Hawaii 96720 

Dear Mr. Thompson: 

Enclosed is a Notice of Land use Commission meeting and the 
Agenda for the Meeting. 

Please note that petition 

SP78-310 - County of Hawaii Fire Department 

will be acted on at that time. 

Should you have' any questions on this matter, please contact 
this office. 

Very truly yours, 

~ 

Executive Officer 

Enclosure - Agenda 
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STATE OF HAWAII 
LAND USE COMMISSION 

NOTIFICATION OF LAND USE COMMISSION MEETING 

•/ 

l DATE, TIME & PLACE 

August 15, 1978 - 9:30 a.m. 
State Conference Rooms A & B 

3060 Eiwa Street 
Li hue, Kauai 

A G E N D A 

I. ACTION 

1. SP76-248 - City & County of Honolulu, Building Department (Time Extension) 
I 

To allow a one (1) year time extension to commence construction of a 
fire -and police training facility within the State Land Use Agricul­
tural District at Waipio Peninsula, Oahu. 

SP78-310 - County of Hawaii Fire Department (Hawaii) 

To allow the construction of water storage tanks for volunteer fire 
fighting purposes on approximately one (1) acre of land situated 
within the State Land Use Agricultural District at Hawaiian Ocean 
View Estates Subdivision, Kahuku, Kau, Hawaii. 

3. SP78-311 - Fraternal Order of Eagles (Hawaii) 

To allow the establishment of a fraternal home on one (1) acre of land 
situated within the State Land Use Agricultural District at Keaau, 
Puna, Hawa i. i . 

4. SP78-312 - Castle & Cooke, Inc. (Oahu) 

To allow the establishment of a water reservoir &ystem on approximately 
1.9 acres of land situated within the State Land Use Agricultural 
District at Waipio, Oahu. 

II. HEARING 

1. A78-438 - Grove Farm Company, Inc. (Kauai) 

To reclassify approximately 61 acres of land from the Agricultural 
District to the Urban District at Li hue, Kauai, for the development of 
a multi-phase regional, mall-type shopping center. 

Ill. MISCELLANEOUS 

1. Adoption of Minutes 
& MAY 2 5 1978 MAY 2 6 1978 

... 2. Meeting Schedule 
l 



STATE OF HAWAII 
LAND USE COMMISSION 

MEMORANDUM 

TO: Land Use Commission August 15, 1978 

FROM: Staff 

SUBJECT: SP78-310 - County of Hawaii Fire Department 

The petitioner, County of Hawaii Fire Department, is 
requesting a Special Permit to allow the construction of water 
storage tanks for volunteer fire fighting purposes on approxi­
mately one (1) acre of land situated within the State Land Use 
Agricultural District at Hawaiian Ocean View Estates Subdivision, 
Kahuku, Kau, Hawaii, Tax Map Key 9-2-31: 19 . . The subject 
property is located on the northeastern corner of the inter­
section of Ocean View Parkway and Orchid Circle Mauka, in the 
Hawaiian Ocean View Estates Subdivision (see attached County 
Exhibit J-1). 

The Special Permit request specifically involves the 
construction of water storage tanks for the purpose of providing 
backup storage capacity for fire trucks serving the area. Also 
included in the request is the use of a 384-square foot garage 
constructed in 1972 for parking the fire truck. This garage 
structure was permitted as an apparatus shed. 

In support of the request, the petitioner has in part 
stated the following: 

"l. Hawaiian Ocean View Estates presently has a volunteer 
fire fighting unit that utilizes a fire truck stationed 
at Tax Map Key 9-2-31: 19, Lot 9, which is owned by the 
County of Hawaii. Existing water storage for the fire 
truck is of a limited capacity. Should a sizeable fire 
occur, the existing storage would be depleted rapidly. 
Additional storage, therefore, would be very beneficial 
to the residents in that area. 

There is also a volunteer fire fighting unit at Naalehu 
(approximately 12 miles away). With an additional 
storage of water at Hawaiian Ocean View Estates, the 
Naalehu fire truck could be used at Hawaiian Ocean View 
Estates throughout the fire without having to refill at 
a water point located at Waiohinu, approximately 10 
miles southeast of Hawaiian Ocean View Estates, which 
would waste precious time. 



f 

"2. The proposed use would not be contrary to the 
objectives sought to be accomplished by the Land Use 
Law and Regulations. The proposed use would, in fact, 
compliment the objectives by providing added security 
to those residents engaged in or who plan to engage in 
the permitted use of the land. 

"3. The proposed use shall not adversely affect surround­
ing properties; it will provide better fire protection. 
Also, all required setbacks and building regulations 
will be adhered to. 

"4. The proposed use will not put any burden on public 
agencies to provide additional services. The sub­
division is privately owned and maintained, and this 
project would only aid the volunteer fire fighters 
dependability. 

"5. With the increasing number of homes being built in 
Hawaiian Ocean View Estates, a voluntary fire fighting 
unit was established; therefore, as mentioned 
previously, this use will result in aiding those 
volunteers. 

"6. The land upon which the permitted use is requested 
was dedicated and conveyed to the County of Hawaii on 
May 4, 1965 by Hawaiian Ocean View Estates. Although 
the land itself is suited for the existing permitted 
use, it is not the County of Hawaii's intent to use 
it as such. 

"7. No alterations or changes will occur to the essential 
character of the land and its present use. 

"8. Fire protection is essential to every community; there­
fore, it is felt that the requested use will make the 
highest and best use of the land involved for the 
public welfare." 

The County of Hawaii's General Plan Land Use Pattern 
Allocation Guide Map designates the subject area as Orchard. 
Present County Zoning is Agricultural 1-acre (A-la). 

The subject area is presently used for the parking of the 
fire truck. This parcel was originally dedicated to the 
County of Hawaii in May, 1965, by the developer. The use of 
this area was limited by a deed restriction solely for the 
purpose of establishing a neighborhood park and/or playground 
site. This deed is presently in the process of being amended 
to permit the proposed use. 

The subject area is a portion of the Hawaiian Ocean View 
Estates Subdivision which consists of over 10,000 lots, 
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approximately one acre in size. There are approximately 150 
single family dwellings situated in this subdivision. The 
area immediately surrounding the subject parcel is presently 
vacant. 

Soils of the subject area consist of A'a lava. This lava 
type has practically no soil covering and is generally bare of 
vegetation except for mosses, lichens, ferns, and ohia trees. 
The U.S.D.A. Soil Conservation Service's overall capability 
rating for these soils is Class VIII. Class VIII refers to 
those soils and landforms that have limitations that preclude 
their use for commercial plants and restrict their use to 
recreation, wildlife, water supply, or for aesthetic purposes. 
The Land Study Bureau's overall master productivity soil 
rating for agricultural use is Class "E" or "Very Poor" for 
the subject site. Average annual rainfall is between 20 to 
24 inches. 

Access to the subject area is from both Ocean View Parkway 
and Orchid Circle Mauka. These roads, which are privately 
owned and maintained, consist of oil-treated cinder surfaces 
approximately 16 feet wide within a forty (40) foot wide right­
of-way. 

The water system for this area consists of individual roof 
catchment with tank storage. In addition, there is no public 
electrical service to many parts of the subdivision including 
the area under consideration. 

All cooperating agencies, including the Hawaii Electric 
Light Company, Inc., Department of Public Works, Department of 
Agriculture, Department of Health and U.S.D.A. Soil Conservation 
Service had no objections to the Special Permit. 

At the public hearing held by the Hawaii Planning 
Commission on June 29, 1978, Fire Chief Donald Thompson spoke 
in support of the request. Under public testimony, Councilman 
Jim Dahlberg, on behalf of the people of Kau, requested the 
Planning Commission's favorable recommendation of the Special 
Permit. For the Commission's information, the June 29, 1978 
hearing transcript has been attached (County Exhibit M). 

On July 19, 1978, the Hawaii Planning Commission voted to 
recommend approval of the Special Permit to the Land Use 
Commission based on the following findings: 

"That the proposed use would not be contrary to the 
objectives sought to be accomplished by the State Land 
Use Law and Regulations. The State Land Use Law and 
Regulations are intended to preserve, protect, and 
encourage the development of lands in the State for 
those uses to which these lands are best suited in the 
interest of public health and welfare of the people. 
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"The area under consideration is classified as Agricultural 
by the State Land Use Commission. The Agricultural 
District does include lands surrounded by or contiguous to 
agricultural and ancillary activities by reason of topo­
graphy, soil and other related characteristics. According 
to the United States . Department of Agriculture, Soil 
Conservation Service's Soil Survey Report issued in 
December of 1973, the subject area is classified as 'A'a 
lava. The Soil Conservation Service's overall capability 
rating for this soil type is Class VIII. Class VIII 
refers to soils that have limitations that preclude their 
use for commercial plans and restrict their use to recrea­
tion, wildlife, or to water supply, and to esthetic 
purpose. This class is the lowest in the Soil Conservation 
Service's ranking system for agricultural activity. The 
Land Study Bureau's overall master productivity rating for 
agriGultural use is Class 'E' or 'Very Poor'. 

"Although it is still possible that some form of agricultural 
activity may be conducted on the subject property, it is 
determined that approval of the subject request would not 
be contrary to the objectives of the State Land Use Law and 
Regulations given the capability Glass rating of the subject 
property for agricultural productivity and the above-cited 
criterion for determining the Agricultural District clas­
sification. 

"Further, the use of the subject property for non-agricultural 
purpose is not expected to have any adverse effect on the 
overall agricultural potential of the region or the County 
and State as the land is not presently being used for any 
agricultural activity. 

"That the proposed use will make the highest and best use of 
the land involved for the public welfare. The subject 
request is to allow the construction of water storage tanks 
for volunteer fire fighting purposes and the retention of 
a garage for the storage of a fire truck. The granting of 
this request will provide a much needed facility for this 
area of Ka'u. The Hawaiian Ocean View Estates Subdivision, 
within which the subject area is situated, consists of over 
10,000 lots approximately one acre in size. There have been 
over 150 single family residential dwellings constructed 
within this subdivision since 1965. Because of this growth 
and the relative isolation of this subdivision, a volunteer 
fire fighting unit was formed to provide fire protection. 
However, the nearest dependable water system is in the 
village of Waiohinu, over ten miles away. Consequently, 
when the fire truck tanks are emptied, the truck must be 
driven to Waiohinu, refilled there, then returned to the 
site of the fire which is a twenty mile round trip. The 
construction of the proposed storage tanks will permit the 
truck to be refilled within the subdivision, thus 
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significantly decreasing the distance the truck must travel. 
This will enable the truck to provide much more efficient 
service, thereby increasing its fire fighting capabilities. 
It is therefore determined that the use of the subject area 
for the proposed water tank and garage uses will be in the 
best interest of public health and welfare of the people, 
properties, and improvements of this portion of the County. 

"Furthermore, the granting of this Special Permit request 
will be in accordance with the Public Facilities Element 
of the General Plan which states as a goal: 

'To provide public facilities that effectively 
service communities needs and to seek ways 
of improving public service through better and 
more functional facilities which are in keep­
ing with environmental and aesthetic concerns 
of the community.' 

"That the proposed use will not have any significant adverse 
impact on surrounding areas. The only adverse impact 
associated with the proposed water tanks and garage faci­
lities will be the visibility of these improvements from 
surrounding areas. However, it is determined that the 
proposed improvements will not be out of character with 
the surrounding areas. The Hawaiian Ocean View Estates 
Subdivision consists primarily of vacant lands and scat­
tered residences. The proposed development, including the 
garage ,will be of a scale and manner in keeping with this 
character. Furthermore, the reasonable size of the subject 
parcel as well as surrounding areas will allow the siting 
of improvements whereby visual impact can be adequately 
mitigated. Furthermore, it is determined that long term 
benefits of the proposed improvements, namely increased 
fire protection, will more than offset any adverse impact 
which may occur." 

For the Commission's information, the July 19, 1978 
meeting minutes have been attached (County Exhibit U). 

The favorable recommendation was subject to the following 
conditions: 

"l. That construction commence within two (2) years of 
the effective date of approval and be completed 
within two (2) years thereafter. 

"2. That all other applicable rules, regulations 
requirements shall be complied with." 

and 

It was further stated by the Planning Commission that: 
"Should any of the foregoing conditions not be met, the Special 
Permit may be deemed null and void." 
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PLANNING COMM,ISSION 

Planning Department 
County of Hawaii 

HEARING TRANSCRIPT 
June 29, 1978 

A regularly advertised public hearing, on the application of the 
County of Hawaii Fire Department, was called to order at 7:00 p.m. 
in the Councilroom, County Building, South Hilo, Hawaii, with 
Chairman William F. Mielcke presiding. 

PRESENT: William F. Mielcke ABSENT: Shigeru Fujimoto 
J. Walsh Hanley 
Lorraine R. Jitchaku Ex-officio Member 
Haruo Murakami Akira Fujimoto 
Bert H. Nakano 
Alfredo Orita 
William J. Paris, Jr. 
Charles H. Sakamoto 

Sidney M. Fuke, Director 
Ilima Piianaia, Planner 

David Murakami, representing Ex-officio Member Edward 
Harada 

Lionel Meyer, Deputy Corporation Counsel 

and about 21 people in attendance 

CHAIRMAN: . We' 11 proceed with public hearings advertised for 
7 p.m. Item number four on the agenda, public hearing on the 
application of the County of Hawaii Fire Department for a Special 
Permit to allow the construction of water storage tanks for 
volunteer fire fighting purposes on 43,567 square feet of land 
situated within the State Land Use Agricultural District. The 
property involved is located on the northeastern corner of the 
intersection of Ocean View Parkway and Orchid Circle Mauka, 
Hawaiian Ocean View Estates Subdivision, Kahuku, Ka'u, TMK: 
9-2-31:19. Staff? 

PIIANAIA: (Presented background on file.) 

CHAIRMAN: Thank you, Ilima. For the benefit of the audience, 
the purpose of the Special Permit is to use land within the 
State Land Use Agricultural or . Rural District for other than 
uses permitted within these districts • . The Planning Director's 
role is to review and make recommendations to the Planning Com­
mission. The Planning Commission's role is advisory if recom­
mending for approval, adjudicatory if denial. Our responsibility 
is to conduct a public hearing after 30 .days but within 120 days 
from receipt of the petition. This . affords the Commission an 
opportunity to receive information from the staff and from the 
petitioner. Public testimony will be taken. No testimony or 
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rebuttal will be allowed after the public hearing is closed. 
Vote to close the public hearing or continue the public hearing 
will be by a majority vote. · 

Members of the Commission, you have heard·· the staff's background 
report on the application. Do you have any questions of the 
staff? If there are no questions from the staff, the Chair at 
this time would like to invite the applicant or a representative 
of the applicant to come forward. 

Chief Thompson, we'll . have to swear you in. Do you swear to tell 
the truth and nothing but the truth on this matter now before 
the· Hawaii County Planning Commission? 

THOMPSON: I do. 

CHAIRMAN: Would you please be seated and state your. name 
into the microphon~. 

THOMPSON: . My name is Donald Thompson. I'm the Fire Chief 
for the.Hawaii County Fire Department; and this particular 
permit is set up for that particular parcel indicated by your 
staff. 

GHAIRMAN: Thank you, Chief Thompson. Do you have anything 
to add to .the staff... s hac_kground report? 

THOMPSON: No, I think this covers everything with the exception 
that~~ may confuse the members of this board, or Commission, in 
that it was mentioned that it was a ten-mile distance to the closest 
water point, and if w.,e're dealing with fires, we'll have to take 
double that because of the turn-around time, which would be twenty 
miles. 

CHAIRMAN: Commissioners; do you have any qu~stions you'd like 
to direct to Chief Thompson? 

MURAKAMI: Mr. Chairman? 

CHAIRMAN: Commissioner Murakami. 

MURAKAMI: Chief Thompson, when you say, "Existing water 
storage for the fire truck is of a limited capacity", what is 
the limited capacity with the existing water tank you have now? 

THOMPSON: We have about a 5,000 gallon water tank. 

MURA.KAMI: Five thousand gallons? 

THOMPSON: Yes • . And the one we intend to put up would be in 
excess of 20,000. 

MURAK.AMI: Twenty-thousand. 

THOMPSON: Yes. 

CHAIRMAN: Commissioner Sakamoto? 



SAKAMOTO: Chief Thompson, in case of, you know, when you have 
the tank and then in case of fire and you use all the water, how 
you're going about filling up the tank? 

THOMPSON: Well, depending on the amount of water we would 
draw from that particular source; and with about 24,000 gallons 
and based on the size of hose you use, we may not exhaust or ' 
deplete that tank on one fire. And given the nature of the area, 
we have some rain other than during the drought area, we'll use 
its own watershed or a cover as a catchment for the water system. 

CHAIRMAN: Commissioner Orita, you have a question? 

ORITA: Chief, how many volunteers have you got in case 
you do have a fire? 

THOMPSON: Out there we have approximately 17 volunteers who 
are active in firefighting and training; but in the time of need, 
we find that this number is triple because you have a lot of 
people interested in that area and it's their property, they'll 
come out. 

CHAIRMAN: Commissioner Murakami-. 

MURAKAMI: Mr. Thompspn, normally, what is the normal amount 
of water you use for a normal fire for a residential home? 

THOMPSON: It depends on the extent of the fire and what is 
burning. Let's take a normal home, a normal type of fire, and 
when I say normal we ~~ill usually have a fire that is a mattress­
type fire, then with the use of minimum supply of water, maybe 
150 gallons, you can remove that mattress from the building and 
only use the amount of water that you need. But if the whole 
building was enveloped, then the use of the water will not be on 
the building, but it would be used to cool off those areas, 
structures that are still standing. 

MURAKAMI: In other words, what you're saying is that the 
existing 5,000 capacity is not enough actually if you have a 
really good fire? 

THOMPSON: That's right. 

CHAIRMAN: Both in terms of extinguishing the fire and pre-
venting it from spreading. 

THOMPSON: And preventing it from spreading. 

CHAIRMAN: Yes, staff. 

PIIANAIA: Chief Thompson, just for clarification purposes, 
in the submittals you showed two proposed water tanks. Do you 
expect to put up more than two tanks? 

THOMPSON:. Not at this time. 

PIIANAIA: In the future do you expect to put up more than two 
tanks? 
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THOMPSON: Not on this site. 

PIIANAIA: Thank you. 
. 

CHAIRMAN: Commissioners, do you have any further questions 
of Chief Thompson? Chief, there does not appear to be any .further 
questions from the Commission. However, this is a public hearing 
and we'd like to ask that you remain in the audience in the 
event a question comes up that we'd like to refer to you. Thank 
you. 

Ladies and gentlemen, this is a public hearing on the application 
of the County of Hawaii Fire Department for a Special Permit. The 
Chair at this time would like to recognize anyone who would like to 

· testify either for or against this application. 

Councilman Dahlberg, we'll have to swear you in. Do you swear to 
tell the truth and nothing but the truth on this application now 
before the Hawaii County Planning Commission? 

DAHLBERG: I do. 

CHAIRMAN: Would you please be seated and state your name 
into the microphone. 

DAHLBERG: My name is Jim Dahlberg from the district of Ka'u. 
Mr. Chairman and Members of the Planning Commission, thank you 
for this opportunity to address you this evening. The people of 
the district of Ka'u have made it very clear to me as their repre­
sentative to the County Council that 24-hour fire protection and 
fire protection in general is of top priority to the district. 
And so I come before you this evening to ask you to approve of 
the putting of tanks on the property in Hawaiian Ocean View 
because this will help us to be one step closer to having that 
much more of an efficient, not only fighting fire_ organization in 
the Hawaiian Ocean View Estates, but for Ka'u in general; and 
because this is of top priority to the people of Ka'u, I would 
like to please ask for .your approval this evening. I'd be happy 
to answer any questions that you might have of me. 

CHAIRMAN: Thank you, Councilman Dahlberg. Commissioners, 
de you have any questions you'd like to refer? 

MURAKAMI: Mr. Chairman? 

CHAIRMAN: Commissioner Murakami. 

MURAKAMI: Jim, can you tell me what the total cost of putting 
up a tank like this? Since you're on the Council, more or less 
you folks got an idea as to what the appropriation of it. 

DAHLBERG: Okay, I'd not familiar with. the total cost of both 
tanks or one tank; and I would refer that question to our Fire 
Chief. 

CHAIRMAN: Chief Thompson, do you have the cost estimates? 

THOMPSON: At the present time, we're working on a $25,000 
budget; and this is not a County-funded project. This i~ a 
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project that is funded through the State and this is latched on 
to the appropriation with the Board of Water Supply. 

CHAIRMAN: And the funds have been allocated? 

THOMPSON: Yes. 

MURAKAMI: All right then let me ask you another question. 
You say you're working on $25,000 funds, what kind of a structure 
would it be constructed with, metal, concrete? 

THOMPSON: This will be a metal tank. 

CHAIRMAN: Thank you. Commissioners, any further questions 
of Councilman Dahlberg? _Thank you for your testimony. 

DAHLBERG: Thank you. 

CHAIRMAN: The Chair at this time would like to recognize 
anyone else who would like to testify either for or against 
this application. Staff, any further questions of the applicant? 

PIIANAIA: No, Mr. Chairman. 

CHAIRMAN: If there is no further testimony to come before 
the Commission, the Chair will entertain a motion to close the 
public- hearing. 

JITCHN<U: So move, Mr. Chairman. 

NAKANO: Second the motion. 

CHAIRMAN: It has been moved by Commissioner Jitchaku and 
seconded by Commissioner Nakano that the application of the 
County of Hawaii Fire Department for a Special Permit be closed. 
All those in favor so signify by saying aye] 

COMMISSIONERS: Aye. 

CHAIRMAN: Oppose, same sign? The public hearing is closed. 

Public hearing adjourned at 7:19 p.m. 

Respectfully submitted, 

~J-h-~ 
Sharon M. Nomura 
Secretary 

A T ·T EST: 

/~
•

William F. Mielcke 
Chairman, Planning Commiss!on 
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PLANNING COMMISSION 

Planning Department 
County of Hawaii 

MINUTES 
July 19, 1978 

The Planning Commission met in regular session at 1:15 p.m. in 
the Pahoa Neighborhood Facility Community Center, Pahoa, Puna, 
Hawaii, and at 6:30 p.m~ in the Na'alehu- Elementary School 
Cafetorium, Na'alehu Village, Kaunamano, Ka'u, Hawaii, with 
Chairman William F. Mielcke presiding. 

PRESENT: William F. Mielcke ABSENT: Shigeru Fujimoto 
J. Walsh Hanley Haruo Murakami 
Lorraine R. Jitchaku 
Bert H. Nakano Ex-officio Member 
Alfredo Orita Akira Fujimoto 
William J. Paris, Jr. 
Charles H. Sakamoto 

Sidney M. Fuke, Director 
Ilima Piianaia, Planner 
Osamu Matsunami, CZM Liaison Officer 

David Murakami, representing Ex-officio Member Edward 
Harada 

Lionel Meyer, Deputy Corporation Counsel 

and about 16 people in attendance at 1:15 p.m. and 
17 people at 6:30 p.m. 

All those testifying were duly sworn in. EXHIBIT_ IA 
n ....1.-_,..:_ '---. ----~-· · - - J .. , __ 
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Mr. Jim Dahlberg verbally presented some research material done 
by members of the Sportsmen Club of Ka'u and pointed out that the 
club's position was that the SMA Use Permit not be approved unless 
public access along the road is guara~teed. Mr. Dahlberg said the 
following questions were raised by the club members during their 
discussions: (1) will public access to Kawaa Bay be guaranteed 
along the shoreline trail if the SMA Permit is approved; (2) will 
construction and grading of the access road, reservoir, and water 
line destroy or relocate portions of the shoreline trail ~f the 
Permit is approved; (3) is the public presently allowed to use the 
access road in question to reach the ocean; and (4) will the public 
be allowed to use the access road in the future to reach the 
shoreline. Mr. Dahlberg said he questioned whether the petitioner 
did in fact receive proper permission to proceed and pointed out 
that the public access concern is something that has been a right 
to the people of Ka'u for over 50 years, which is slowly being taken 
away. Upon the Commission's request, Mr. Dahlberg said he will 
be submitting a written statement to the Commis~ion later. 

For the record, staff pointed out that the Department has on file 
a certified letter sent to the petitioner's representative, Stanley 
Roehrig, asking him to address the discrepancies in the CDUA and 
SMA Permit applications. 

At this time the Deputy Corporation Counsel questioned· Mr. Dahlberg 
whether he was appearing as an interested party on behalf of the 
Sportsmen Club of Ka'u. In reply, Mr Dahlberg stated that at the 
present time, he did not consider the club to be an interested 
party. 

It was moved by Commissioner Jitchaku and seconded by Commissioner 
Paris that the public hearing be continued; motion was carried. 
The Chair at this time pointed out that he will leave it to the 
staff to determine the date for continuing the public hearing. 

SPECIAL PERMIT 
COUNTY OF HAWAII 
FIRE DEPARTMENT 
KAHUKU, KA 1U 

Application of the County of Hawaii Fire Depart­
ment for a Special Permit to allow the construc­
tion of water storage tanks for volunteer fire 
fighting purposes on 43,567 square feet of land 
situated withiri the State Land Use Agricultural 

District. The property involved is located on the northeastern 
corner of the intersection of Ocean View Parkway and Orchid Circle 
Mauka, Hawaiian Ocean View Estates Subdivision, Kahuku, Ka'u, TMK: 
9-2-31:19. 

Staff presented recommendation for approval with conditions on file.· 

There was no one from the public testifying on the application. 

It was moved by Commissioner Sakamoto and seconded by Commissioner 
Jitchaku to send a favorable recommendation to the State Land Use 
Commission with the conditions outlined by the staff. A roll call 
vote was taken and motion carried with seven ayes. 

- 5 - . 



PLANNING DEPARTMENT 
25 AUPUNI STREET • HILO, HAWAII 96720 HERBERT T. MATAYOSHI 

Mayor 

COUNTY OF 
SIDNEY M. FUKE HAWAII 

Director 

DUANE KANUHA 
Deputy Director 

July 31, 1978 

Mr. Gordan Furutani 
Executive Officer 
Land Use Commission 
190 South King Street 
Suite 1795 
Honolulu, Hawaii 96813 

Dear Mr. Furutani: 
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Special Permit Application 
Petitioner: County of Hawaii Fire Department 

In accordance with Chapter 205, Section 205-6, Hawaii 
Revised Statutes, we are transmitting the decision and 
findings of the County Planning Commission on the above 
application. 

The special permit request was to allow the construction 
of water storage tanks for volunteer fire fighting purposes 
on 43,567 square feet of land situated within the State Land 
Use Agricultural District at Hawaiian Ocean View Estates 
Subdivision, Kahuku, Ka'u, Hawaii, Tax Map Key 9-2-31:19. 

The Planning Commission at a duly advertised public 
hearing held on June 29, 1978 in the Councilroom, County 
Building, South Hilo, Hawaii, discussed the subject request. 
The Commission on July 19, 1978, voted to recommend the 
approval of the special permit to the Land Use Commission 
based on the following findings: 

That the proposed use would not be contrary to the 
objectives sought to be accomplished by the State Land 
Use Law and Regulations. The State Land Use Law and 
Regulations are intended to preserve, protect, and 
encourage the development of lands in the State for 
those uses to which these lands are best suited in 
the interest of public health and welfare of the 
people. 



Mr. Gordan Furutani 
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The area -under consideration is classified as Agri­
cultural by the State Land Use Commission. The Agricultural 
District does include lands surrounded by or contiguous to 
agricultural and ancillary activities by reason of topography, 
soil and other related characteristics. According to the 
United States Department of Agriculture, Soil Conservation 
Service's Soil Survey Report issued in December of 1973, the 
subject area is classified as 'A'a lava. The Soil Conserva­
tion Service's overall capability rating for this soil type 
is Class VIII. Class VIII refers to soils that have limitations 
that preclude their use for commercial plans and restrict their 
use to recreation, wildlife, or to water supply, and to 
esthetic purpose. This class is the lowest in the Soil Con­
servation Service's ranking system for agricultural activity. 
The Land Study Bureau's overall master productivity rating 
for .agricultural use is Class E or Very Poor. 

Although it is still possible that some form of agricul­
tural activity may be conducted on the subject property, it 
is determined that approval of the subject request would not 
be contrary to the objectives of the State Land Use Law 
and Regulations given the capability class rating of the 
subject property for agricultural productivity and the 
above-cited criterion for determining the Agricultural 
District classification. 

Further, the use of the subject property for non­
agricultural purpose is not expected to have any adverse 
effect on the overall agricultural potential of the region 
or the County and State as the land is not presently being 
used for any agricultural activity. 

That the proposed use will make the highest and best 
use of the land involved for the public welfare. The subject 
request is to allow the construction of water storage tanks 
for volunteer fire fighting purposes and the retention of 
a garage for the storage of a fire truck. The granting 
of ~his request will provide a much needed facility for 
this area of Ka'u. The Hawaiian Ocean View Estates Sub­
division, within which the subject area is situated, 
consists of over 10,000 lots approximately one acre in 
size. There have been over 150 single family residential 
dwellings constructed within this subdivision since 1965. 
Because of this growth and the relative isolation of this 
subdivision, a volunteer fire fighting unit was formed to 
provide fire protection. However, the nearest dependable 
water system is in the village of Waiohinu, over ten miles 
away. Consequently, when the fire truck tanks are emptied, 
the truck must be driven to Waiohinu, refilled there, then 
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returned to the site of the fire which is a twenty mile 
round trip. The construction of the proposed storage 
tanks will permit the truck to be refilled within the 
subdivision, thus significantly decreasing the distance 
the truck must travel. This will enable the truck to 
provide much more efficient service, thereby increasing 
its fire fighting capabilities. It is therefore determined 
that the use of the subject area for the proposed water 
tank and garage uses will be in the best interest of 
public health and welfare of the people, properties, and 
improvements of this portion of the County. 

Furthermore, the granting of this Special Permit request 
will be in accordance with the Public Facilities Element of 
the General Plan which states as a goal: 

"To provide public facilities that effectively 
service communities needs and to seek ways of improving 
public service through better and more functional 
facilities which are in keeping with environmental 
and aesthetic concerns of the community." 

That the proposed use will not have any significant 
adverse impact on surrounding areas. The only adverse 
impact associated with the proposed water tanks and garage 
facilities will be the visibility of these improvements 
from surrounding areas. However, it is determined that the 
proposed improvements will not be out of character with 
the surrounding areas. The Hawaiian Ocean View Estates 
Subdivision consists primarily of vacant lands and 
scattered residences. The proposed development, including 
the garage will be of a scale and manner in keeping with 
this character. Furthermore, the reasonable size of the 
subject parcel as well as surrounding areas will allow the 
siting of improvements whereby visual impact can be adequately 
mitigated. Furthermore, it is determined that long term 
benefits of the proposed improvements, namely increased fire 
protection, will more than offset any adverse impact which 
may occur. 

The. favorable recommendation was also subject to the following 
conditions: 

1, That construction commence within two (2) years of 
the effective date of approval and be completed 
within two (2) years thereafter. 

2. That all other applicable rules, regulations and 
requirements shall be complied with. 
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Should any of the foregoing conditions not be met, the 
Special Permit may be deemed null and void. 

Enclosed are copies of the Exhibits from the subject docket. 

Sincerely, 

WILLIAM F. MIELCKE 
Chairman, Planning Commission 

lgv 
Enclosures 

cc Mr. Donald Thompson 
Land Use Division, DPED 
Manager, Water Supply 



Donald Thom 
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Kinoole Str 

o, Hawaii 967 
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The Planning Commission at its regular meeting of 
July 19, 1978, considered your application for a special
permit to allow the construction of water storage tanks 
for volunteer fire fighting purposes on 43,567 square
feet of land situated within the State Land Use Agri­

. cultural District at Hawaiian Ocean View Estates 
Subdivision, Kahuku, Ka'u, Hawaii. 

The Commission voted to forward favorabl 
mendation to the Land Use Commission subject to 
lowing conditions: 

That construction commence within 
of the effective date of approval
within two (2) years thereafter. 

That all other applicable rules, regulations and 
requirement• shall be complied with. 

uld any of the foregoing con 
Pe e deemed 
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July 20, 1978 

In the meantime, should you have any questions, please 
feel free to contact the Planning Department at 961-8288. 

Sincerely, 

w 
Chairman, Planning Commission 

lgv 

cc State Land Use Commission / 
Land Use Division, OPED 
Manager, Water Supply 



LIST OF EXHIBITS - COUNTY OF HAWAII FIRE DEPARTMENT 

A. Application form 

A-1. Applicant's reasons 

A-2. Applicant's environmental assessment 

A-3. Applicant's location map 

A-4. Applicant's project location plan 

A-5. Applicant's specific location plan 

A-6. Applicant's plot plan 

B. Acknowledgement letter (5/22/78) 

c. Memo to the agencies (5/22/18) 

D. Water Supply {5/10/78) 

E. Helco {5/25/78) 

F. Public Works (5/25/78) 

G. Agriculture {5/20/78) 

H. Health (6/2/78) 

I. Soil Conservation Service (6/9/78) 

J. Letter to the surrounding property owners {6/16/78) 

J-1. Map sent to the surrounding property owners 

J-2. List of the surrounding property owners 

K. · Letter to the applicant {6/16/78) 

K-1. Public Hearing Notice 

L. Minutes {6/29/78) 

M. Transcript (6/29/78) 

N. Letter to the applicant {6/30/78) 

o. Letter to the applicant (7/10/78) 



P. Staff Ba~kground 

Q. Staff Recommendation 

R. Location Map (please return) 

S. Plot plan (please return) 

T. voting sheet 

u. Minutes 7/19/78 
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PLICATION FOR SPECIAL PERMIT 

COUNTY OF HAWA I I 

PLANNING DEPARTMENT - PLANNING COMMISSION 

APPLICANT: Hawaii Fire Department, County of Hawaii 

APPLI CA;H I S SIGNATURE: 

ADDRESS: 466 Kinoole Street 

Hilo, Hawaii 96720 

TELEPHONE: . 935-2978 

TAX MAP KEY: 9-2-31 :19, Lot 9 AREA: 43,567 square feet 
(Siae of l'aroe1,) 

OWNER: County of Hawaii 

OWNER'S SIGNATURE: 

APPLICANT'S INTEREST, IF NOT OWNER: Hawaii Fire Department 

REQUESTED USE: Installation of water storage tanks within agricultural zoned 

land for volunteer fire fighting purposes. Water storage tanks to provide 

backup storage capacity of fire truck. 

APPLICANT'S REASON($) FOR REQUESTING SPECIAL PERMIT: (Ptease attach) 

NOTE: The applicant must show that: 

(a) - such use shall not be contrary to the objectives sought to be 
accomplished by the Land Use Law and Regulations; 

(b) the desired use shal I not adversely affect surrounding properties; 
Cc) such use shall not unreasonably burden publlc agencies to provide 

roads and streets, sewers, water, drainage, school Improvements, and 
police and fire protection; · 

Cd) unusual conditions, trends, and needs have arisen since the district 
boundaries and regulations were established; 

(e) the land upon which the proposed use Is sought Is unsuited for the 
uses permitted within the district; 

(f) the proposed use wt I I not substantially alter or change the essentfaf 
·character of the land and the present use; and 

Cg> the proposed use wl II make the highest and best use of the land 
involved for the public welfare. 

THIS APPLICATION MUST BE ACCOMPANIED BY: 

Ca) 16 copies of the completed application form with attachments. 
(b) 16 copies of a locat1on map. 
Cc) 16 copies of a site plan with existing and proposed uses. 
(d) any addltlonal Information. 
(e) $100.00 processing fee. 

For Offlclal Use: 

Date received 
120th day ___________ 
Publlc Hearing date _______ 
Action date 
To Land Use Commission EXHIBIT 4 

P.O. 3 2/75 
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STATEMENT OF REASONS 

FOR 

SPECIAL PERMIT 

HAWAII FIRE DEPARTMENT 

County of Hawaii 

l. Hawaiian Ocean View Estates presently has a volun_teer tire fighting unit that 
•utilizes a. fire truck stationed at Tax Map Key 9-2-31 :19, Lot 9, which is owned 

by the County of Hawaii. Existing water storage for the fire truck is of a 

limited capacity. Should a sizeable fire occur, the existing storage would 

be depleted rapidly. Additional storage, therefore, would be very beneficial 

to the residents in that area. 

There is also a volunteer fire fightirtg unit at Naalehu {approximately 12 miles 

away). With an additional storage of water at Hawaiian Ocean View Estates, the 

Naalehu fire truck could be used at Hawaiian Ocean View Estates throughout the 

fire without having to refill at a water point located at Waiohinu, approximately 

10 miles southeast of Hawaiian Ocean View Estates, which would waste precious time. 

2. The proposed use would not be contrary to the objectives sought to be accomplished 

by the Land Use Law and Regulations. The proposed. use would, in fact, compljment 

the objectives by providing added security to those residents engaged in or·who 

plan to engage in ·the permitted use of the land. 

3. The proposed u~e shall not adversely affect surrou~ding properties; it will provide 

better fire protection. Also, all required setbacks and building regulations will 

be adhered to. 

4. The proposed use will not put any burden on public agencies to provide additional 

services. The subdivision is privately owned and maintained, and this projert 

would only aid the volunteer fire fighters dependability. 

EXHIBIT ,4 -/ 



5. With the increasing number of homes being built in Hawaiian Ocean View Estates, 

a voluntary fire fighting unit was established; therefore, as mentioned pr~viously, 

this use will result in aiding those volunteers. 

6. The land upon which the permitted use is requested was dedicated and conveyed to 

the County of Hawaii on May 4, 1965 by Hawaii an Ocean View Estates. A lthodgh the 

land itse.lf is suited for the existing permitted use, it is ·not• the County of 

. Hawaii's intent to use it as such. 
•7. No alterations or changes will ·occur to the essential character of the land and 

its present use. 

8. Fire protection is essential to every community; therefore, it is felt that the 

requested use will make the highest and best use of the land involved for the 

public welfare. 

-2-
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ENVIRONMENTAL ASSESSMENT 

1. IDENTIFICATION OF AGENCY: 

Hawaii Fire Department 
County of Hawaii 
466 Kinoole Street 
Hilo, HI 96720 

2. DESCRIPTION OF PROPOSED ACTION: 

The Hawaii Fire Department of the County of Hawaii proposes to install 
water storage tanks for fire fighting purposes ori Tax Map Key 9-2-31: 19, 
Lot 9, being within Hawaiian Ocean View Estates. 

The parcel in question was dedicated and conveyed to the County of 
Hawaii on Hay I+, 1965 by Hawaiian Ocean View Estates, a Nevada Corporation. 
Presently, there are volunteer fire fighters with a fire truck at Hawaiian 
Ocean View Estates; however, water storage capacity is limited. The 
nearest dependable water system is located 10 miles away from the sub­
division, at Waiohinu; and the nearest fire protection is the Naalehu 
Volunteer Fire Truck, located 12 miles south. 

Therefore, the proi::,osed additional water storage capacity would increase 
the dependability of the volunteer fire protection. The Naalehu Volunteer 
Fire Truck could be utilized for fire fighting at Hawaiian Ocean View 
Est.ates, and both fire trucks could refill at the subdivision without 
having to waste precious time refilling their trucks with water elsewhere. 

It should be noted that the proposed water storage is primarily intended 
for fire fighting and not for consumption. 

Monies from Legisla.tive Appropriations in the sum of $35,000.00 would be 
used to finance the proposed prcject. 

This Environmental Assessment is being prepared in accordance with 
Chapter 343, Hawaii Revised Statutes, which requires an environmental 
im~.ct statement of all agency actions proposing the use of State or 
County land or funds. 

Along \•rith this Environmental Assessment, an application for Special 
Permit is being prepared for submittal to the Planning Department of 
the County of Hawaii for the proposer:! use of Tax Map Key 9-2-31: 19, 
Lot 9. 

-1-
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3. AGErrcrns CONSULT~D DURING ASSESSMENT: 

A. County of Hawaii 

1. Department of Public Works 

2. Planning Department 

3. Hawaii Fire Department 

B. State of Hawaii 

1. Department of Land and Natural Resources 

2. Department of Agriculture 

3. Department of Health 

C. Others 

1. Ka'u Soil Conservation 

2. Hawa iian Ocean View Estates Association 

J. Audubon Society 

4, DESCRI P'l'ION OF AFFECTED ENVIHONH.ENT: 

The subject land is located within Hawaiian Ocean View Estates in 
Kahuku, Ka ' u , Hawaii. This subdivision consists of approximately 10,800 
lots and is located 65 miles south of Hilo, Hawaii (on Sta te Highway 
No. 11). The typica l lot size is one a.ere and is zoned "Ag 1" by the 
County of Hawai i General Plan for orchard and alternate urban exp,rnsion 
use and designated "Agriculture" by the State Land Use Designation. 

The r oads within the subdivision a.r e privately owned, oil treated cinder 
surface and maintained by the owners. 

The number of homes within the subdivision is approximately 150 and 
increas i ng yearly. The water system is of the roof catchment type 
with r a infall of 20 - 24 inches (average annual). 

The l and consists of pahoehoe and aa lava with little or no soil. 
Veget ation consists of ohia trees and various shrubs. Topography of 
the l and i s sloping roughly to the ocean. There exist no known 
his tor ica l sites within the subject parcel. 

DESCRIPTION OF PROPOSED USE: 

The parcel designated by Tax Map Key 9-2-31:19, Lot 9, consists of 
43,567 square feet and will be used a s a volunteer fire fighting 
station with water storage tanks and rain catchment system thereon. 

-2-
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The proposed use will not create any added demand upon available public 
facilities; in fact, it will enhance it. 

Proposed construction will be done by a private entity under contract or 
agreement with the Fire Department of the County of Hawaii. Should further 
improvements be required, they will be developed in accordance with all 
applicable State and County requirements. 

6. ANTICIPATED IMPACTS ON THE ENVIRONMENT: 

'l'he proposed project is not anticipated to have any significant impacts 
upon the environment. 

Only minimal land clearing will be involved. The number of ohia trees 
and shrubs that may be removed for the placement of the storage tanks 
will be insignificant as compared to the total number on the same parcel. 

The proposed storage t anks will be of the round prefabricated type, 
available in several sizes; therefore, no extensive construction will 
occur. 

Visual impacts are unavoidable; however, the placement of the tanks and 
pa inti.ng will be considered in an effort to lessen any adverse visual 
effects. 

The project will not create any additional traffic in the area and will 
not compete with any existing use of the area. 

ANTICIPATED ECONOMIC IMPACTS: 

The proposed project does not have any significant economic impacts. 
It will only provine for additional water storage capability, thereby 
making the fire fighting capabilities a litte more dependable. 

This project, however, might possibly boost the economy of the area by 
instilling a greater feeling of security for residents living there and 
for those who are planning to live there. 

8. ALTEHNATIVE OF THE PROPOSED ACTIOIJ: 

The only alternative to the proposed action would be "no action." Fire 
fighting would then depend on the limited water storage existing and on 
the volunteer fire trucks from Hawaiian Ocean View Estates and Naalehu. 
Both trucks, however, would have to depend on their own carrying storage 
capacity and timely refilling at a water point located at Waohinu, 
approximc1.tely 10 miles southeast of Hawaiian Ocean View Estates. 

-3-
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CONCLUS IOI~: 

Based on the foregoing discussion of the subject proposed action, it is 
determined that the overall benefits of the action will greatly outweigh 
the adverse effects. It can also be seen that the project would not 
result in any significant environmental impacts and that an Environmental 
Impact Statement will not be required. 

This assessment, therefore, shall serve as a Negative Declaration for the 
proposed project. 

-4-
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Ec:i.y 22, l S 72, 

Pirc Dcpartr.1cnt 
·.-:,GG LLnoolc .St . 
Hilo , I!I 96 720 

C0.ar Gentlemen: 

Special Perr:,it - \Inter Storage Tanks 
TI·Ii, : 9-2-31:19 (lot 9) 

This i.s to acl:nmvlcc:gc receip t on 1•:ay 17, 1978 o::7 the ubovc 
described s pec ial permit a~plication. 

The County Planning Commission shall c onduct - a public hear­
ins on the request wi t h i n a period o f not less than thirty (3 0 ) 
nor more than one hundred twenty ( 120 ) days from the receipt o: 
-~Jw an:;lication . The: flannin,; Conr:d.s ::;icn shal l then c1ct on ·cn e 
a~"):)li~~tion not c2rlier than fift een ( 15) days after the public 
hca.::-ing but \-,Jithjn a reas onab l e t ic1e thercaf"ter. Should the 
FJ.annins Cor.1r.1ission recommend favorably on the request , it v1ill 
~1 cn be forwarded to ~ 1e State Land Use Commission £or fin~l 
ac tion . 

However, the Planninc;r Comr:iission nay deny the r equest i f it 
is found that the proposed use does not rieet the s pecial permit 
guidelines. In this cas e , their decis i on is final. I n accordance 
with the prov:i..sions of Cha;:Yt:cr 205-6, Hawc1ii Revised Statutes, .:: 
den i al by the Plann ing Comnission 8ay be appealbblc to the Circui t 
Court of the c i rcuit in \-Jhich the land is situatcd , in this c2~.;c , 
the Third Circuit Court. 

Hoticc of the time and pl a ce of the publ:l.c h cur i n g shall be 
:.:or wardcd when t he application is s cheduled f or Cor.1r:1i:::;s ion action. 

Should any questions arise, please contact Ilima Piianaia or 
Keith Kato of this department at 961-0220 . 

8IP:ak 
cc: DUS 

State L~nd U~c Commiss ion 
DPED - Land Use Division 



MEMORANDUM: 
PLANNING DEPARTMENT County of Hawaii, Hilo, Hawaii 96720 

To: DPW 
POLICE 

SOIL CONSERVATION 
DEPT. OF AGRICULTURE 

Date: May 22, 1978 

HIGHWAYS H~O 
HEALTH 

From: DIRECTO~~,~~ 

Subject : Special~i~v- Water Storage Tanks 
Fire Department 
TMK: 9-2-31 : 19 ( 1 o t 9 ) 

-
The attached application for a special permit is forwarded 

for your review. May we have viritten comments within two weeks. 

Thank you. 

ak 
Enclosure 

MAY 2 3 1978_ 



DEPARTMENT OF WATER SUPPLY 

P. 0 . BOX 1820 HILO, HAWAII 96720 

May 10, 1978 

TO: Planning Department 

FROM: Manager 

SUBJECT: SPECIAL PERMIT APPLICATION 
HAWAIIAN OCEAN VIEW ESTATES 
TAX MAP KEY 9-2-31:19, ~OT 9 

Enclosed for your further processing are sixteen (16) copies each of 
the following: 

1. Special Permit Application. 

2. Statement of Reasons. 

3. Environmental Impact Assessment. 

4. Location Map. 

5. Project Location Plan. 

6. Specific Location Plan. 

7. Site Pl an. 

Should you have any questions or require further information, please
call us . 

.e/2:;Jl' ~-~ 
Akira jimoto
Manag, 

MP 

Encs. 

cc - Hawaii Fire Dept. (w/encs.) 

... Waler b,·ingJ progreoo . .. ', 



HAWAII ELECTRIC LIGH'r COMPANY, INC. 
P. □. BOX 1 □27 HILO, HAWAII- 9672 □ 

- May 25, 1978 

County of Hawaii 
Planning Department
25 Aupuni Street 
Hilo, Hawaii 96720 

Attention: Mr. Sidney Fuke 
Director 

Subject: SMA Use Permits 

Gentlemen: 

We have no co~ments to the following permits: 

Mr. Sidney Kaid e ) 
8-Unit Apartment & Related ) Memo dated 5/17/78

Improvements
TMK: 7-8-14:15 ~ 
Mr. Kiyoto Segawa )
Office & Warehouse Building )
& Related Improvements ) Memo dated 5/18/78 

TMK: 2-1-07:47 &49 ) 

/4ter Storage Tanks ) 
Fire Department ) Memo dated 5/22/78
TMK: 9-2 -31 : 1 9 (Lot 9) ) 

JN:bk 



,

DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS 
COUNTY OF HAWAII 

HILO, HAWAII 

DATE May 25, 1978 

d/frm(JJanlum 
TO Planning Department 

FROM Chief Engineer 

SUBJECT: Special Permit - Water Storage Tanks 
Fire Department 
TMK: 9-2-31:19, Lot 9 

In response to your May 22, 1978 memo, we have reviewed the subject 
special permit application and have no comments to offer. 

EWARD 

l 
F 

, 
i 

I.. 



GEORGE R. ARIYOSHI 
:~:~-~· ~~ 

, 1L5g · 
,: \ \ . ,· . 

r
~ ,, 

1' ~ 
· ' . 
,. 

JOHN FARIAS, JR.GOVERNOR CHAIRMAN, BOARD OF AGRICULTURE 

YUKIO KITAGAWA 
DEPUTY TO THE CHAIRMAN 

BOARD MEMBERS: 

Suzanne D. Peterson 
MEMBER-AT-LARGESTATE OF HAWAII 

ERNEST F. MORGADODEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE 
MEMBER-AT -LARGE

1428 SO. KING STREET 

HONOLULU, HAWAII 96814 Si<lney ·Goo 
MEMBER•AT-LARGE 

Federico Galdones 
May 30, 1978 HAWAII MEMBER 

FRED M. OGASAWARA 
MAUI MEMBER 

MEMORANDUM 

To: Mr. Sidney Fuke, Director 
Hawaii County Planning Department 

Subject: Special Permit - Water Storage Tanks 
Fi re Department 
TMK: 9-2-31: 19 (lot 9) 

The Department of Agriculture has no objections to this 
Special Permit request. 

preciate 

.___~ fur 
N FARIAS, 

Chairman, Boa 

to comment . 

R. 
d of Agriculture 



. l 
MEMORANDUM: 
PLANNING DEPARTMENT County of · Hawaii, Hilo, Hawaii 96720 

To: DPT:/ SOIL CONSERVA~ION Date: May 22, 1978POLlC:E DEPT . OF J\Gl~ICULTURE 
HIGHWAYS H~::LCO 

" HEALTII 

From: DIRECTG~ti,lx\~ 

Subject : SpecialWr~i~ v- l·Jatcr .Stora00. 'l'an!~::; 
Fire Depar tment 
TI1K : 9-2-31:19 (lot 9) 

The attached applica tior. -For a special permi. t is forwarded 

for your review. Via:,' we have written comments wi,chj_n two weeks. 

Thank you. 

Department of Health 
Hilo, Hawaii 
June 2, 1978 

Enclosure COMMENTS 

Found no environmental health concern. 

JI,,___,.-e.Z_ 
HAROLD MATSUURA 
Chief Sanitarian, Hawaii 



. I 

UNITED STATES DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE 

SOIL CONSERVATION SERVICE 

P.O. Box 1361, Hilo, Hawaii 96720 

June 9, 1978 

Mr. Sidney Fuke, Director 
Planning Department 
County of Hawaii 
25 Aupuni Street 
Hilo, Hawaii 96720 

Dear Mr. Fuke: 

Subject: Special Permit - Water Storage Tanks 
Fire Department 
TMK 9-2-31:19 (lot 9) 

There does not appear to be any soil and water conservation­
related concerns regarding the above. 

Sincerely, 

~ 1??10~~ 
\Jr~. Soenen 

District Conservationist 

I 

. r 



COUNTY OF 
HAWAII 

PLANNING DEPARTMENT 
25 AUPUNI STREET • HILO, HAWAII 96720 HERBERTT. MATA YOSHI 

Mayor 

SIDNEY M. FllKE 
Director 

DUANE KANUIIA 
Deputy Director 

June 16, 1978 

Dear Property Owner: TMK: 

Special Permit Application 
Kahuku, Ka'u, Hawaii 
Tax Map Key 9-2-31: 19 

You are hereby notified thit a request for a special permit 
to allow the construction of water storage tanks for volunteer 
fire fighting purposes of 43,567 square feet of land situated 
within the State Land Use Agricultural District has been submitted 
by the petitioner, County of Hawaii Fire Department. 

The property involved is located on the northeastern corner 
of the intersection of Ocean View Parkway and Orchid Circle Mauka, 
Hawaiian Ocean View Estates Subdivision, Kahuku, Ka'u, Hawaii. 

A public hearing on the subject among others will be held 
beginning at 7:00 p.m. on Thursday, June 29, 1978, in the Council­
room, County Building, South Hilo, Hawaii. 

You are invited to comment on the application at the hearing 
or submit written comments prior to the hearing. 

Sincerely, 

~~ 
\)Director 

srnn 

Enclosure 

cc: State Land Use Commission 
Land Use Division, .DPED 

JUN 1 6 1978 
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June 16, 1978 

Mr. Donald Thompson 
County of Hawaii 
Fire Department 
466 Kinoole Street 
Hilo, HI 96720 

Dear Mr. Thompson: 

Notice of a Public Hearing 
Special Permit Application 
Tax Map Key 9-2-31:19 

This is to inform you that your request has been scheduled 
for a public hearing. Said hearing among others will be held 
beginning at 7:00 p.m. on Thursday, June 29, 1978, in the Council-
room, County Building, South Hilo, Hawaii. 

The presence of a representative will be appreciated in order 
that all questions relative to the request may be clarified. 

A copy of the hearing notice and _agenda is enclosed for your 
information. 

Sincerely, 

fl\ - ~ / l( ... 0. ,, ,./I , 

GA"\_... Sidney M. Fuke 
t Director 

smn 

Enclosure 

cc: State Land Use Commission 
Land Use Division, DPED 
Dept. of Water Supply 



PUBLIC HpARINGS 

PLANNING COMMISSION 
COUNTY OF HAWAII 

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN of public hearings to be held by the 

Planning Commission of the County of Hawaii in accordance with the 

provisions of Section 5-4.3 of the Charter of the County of Hawaii. 

PLACE: Councilroom, County Building, South Hilo, Hawaii 

DATE: Thursday, June 29, 1978 

TIME: Items 1 to 3: 3:30 p.m. 
Items 4 and 5: 7: 00 p.m. 

The purpose of the public hearings is to affprd all interested 

persons a reasonable opportunity to be heard on the following requests: 

1. PETITIONER: FRATERNAL ORDER OF EAGLES, HILO AERIE 
NO. 3642 

LOCATION: Adjacent to the Girl Scout Service Center 

on the south side and just off of the K~a•au­

Pahoa Road, Kea'au, Puna. 

TMK: 1-6-04:portion of 11 

PURPOSE: Special Permit application to allow the 

establishment of a fraternal home on one (1) 

acre of land situated within the State 

Land Use Agricultural District. 

2. PETITIONER: THE NATURE CONSERVANCY 

LOCATION: Land division of Maulua Nui, North Hilo 

'l'MK: 3-4-02:4 

PURPOSE: Variance application from roadway improve­

ment requirements for a proposed 3-lot 

subdivision. 

'; I<-( 



3. PETITIONER: 

LOCATION: 

TMK: 

PURPOSE: 

PETITIONER: 

LOCATION: 

TMK: 

PURPOSE: 

5. PETITIONER: 

LOCATION: 

TMK: 

DR. JOHN LEONARD 

Immediately north of Sako Sto~e on the 

east side of the Volcano Highway, Ol'aa 

Reservation Lots, Ola'a, Puna. 

1-7-19:portion of 25 

Change of zone application for 24,056 . 

square feet of land from a Single Family 

Residential - 20,000 square foot (RS-20} 

to a Neighborhood Commercial - 10,000 

square foot (CN-10} zoned district. 

COUNTY OF HAWAII FIRE DEPARTMENT 

Northeastern corner of the intersection of 

Ocean View Parkway and Orchid Circle Mauka, 

Hawaiian Ocean View Estates subdivision, 

Kahuku, I<a'u. 

9-2-31:19 

Special Permit application to allow the 

construction of water storage tanks for 

volunteer fire fighting purposes on 43,567 

square feet of land situated within the 

State Land Use Agricultural District. 

COUNTY OF HAWAII DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS 

Kamehameha Avenue between Mamo Street and 

Waianuenue Avenue, city of Hilo, Ponahawai 

and Punahoa 1st, South Hilo. 

2-3-01, 02, and 07 

. r 
- 2 -



PURPOSE: Continuat'ion of a public hearing on the 

Special Management Area (SMA) Use Permit 

application to allow the realignment of 

Kamehameha Avenue between Mamo Street and 

Waianuenue Avenue. 

Maps showing the general locations and boundaries of the areas 

· under consideration and/or plans of the proposed developments are on 

file in the office of the Planning Department in the County Building 

at 25 Aupuni Street, Hilo, Hawa ii, and are open to inspection during 

office hours . All comments should be filed with the Planning Commis­

sion before that date, .or in person at the public hearing. 

PLANNING COMMISSION, 
WILLIAM F. MIELCKE, Chairman 
By SIDNEY M. PUKE 
Planning Director 

(Hawaii Tribune-Herald: June 19 and 27, 1978) 
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PLANNING COMMISSION 

Planning Department 
County of Hawaii 

MINUTES 
June 29, 1978 

The Planning Commission met in regular session at 1:30 p.m. in 
the Councilroom, County Building, South Hilo, Hawaii, with 
Chairman William F. Mielcke presiding •. 

PRESENT: William F. Mielcke ABSENT: Shigeru Fujimoto 
J. Walsh Hanley 
Lorraine R. Jitchaku Ex-officio Member 
Haruo Murakami Akira Fujimoto 
Bert H. Nakano 

· Alfredo Orita 
William J. Paris, Jr. 
Charles H. Sakamoto 

Sidney M. Fuke, Director 
Ilima Piianaia, Planner 
Keith Kato, Planner (Left at 4:56 p.m.) 
William Moore, Planner (Left at 4:46 p.m.) 

Edmund Morimoto, representing .Ex-officio Member Edward 
Harada (Left at 3:30 p.m.) 

David Murakami, representing Ex-officio Member Edward 
Harada (Fr cm 3:30 p.m.) 

Lionel Meyer, Deputy Corporation Counsel EXHIBITL 
and about 8 people in attendance at 1:30 p.m., 16 

people at 3:49 p.m. and 21 people at 7:00 p.m. 



.. .,, . .. 

RECESS: A recess was called at 4:36 p.m. until the 
scheduled public hearings at 7:00 p.m. 

RECONVENED: The meeting · reconvened at 7:00 p.m. 

SPECIAL PERMIT Public hearing on the application of the 
COUNTY OF HAWAII County of Hawaii Fire Department for a 
FIRE DEPARTMENT Special Permit to allow the construction of 
KAHUKU, KA'U water storage tanks for volunteer fire 

fighting purposes on 43,567 square feet . 
of land situated within the State Land Use Agricultural District. 
The property involved is located on the northeastern corner of 
the intersection of Ocean View Parkway and Orchid Circle Mauka, 
Hawaiian Ocean View Estates Subdivision, Kahuku, Ka'u, TMK: 

· 9-2-31:19. 

·staff presented b~ckground information on file. 

The petitioner's representative, Fire Chief Donald Thompson, 
clarified that the ten-mile distance to the closest water point 
mentioned in the staff's report is actually double because ten 
miles is only one way. He added that the existing 5,000-gallon 
capacity is inadequate in terms of extinguishing a fire and 
preventing it from spreading, and they in~end to put up tanks 
in excess of 20,000 gallons. 

For the staff's information, Chief Thompson clarified that they 
do not intend to put up more than two tanks in the future on this 
site. 

Under public testimony, Councilman Jim Dahlberg, on behalf of 
the people in the district of Ka'u, requested the Commission's 
favorable recommendation on this request. 

Chief Thompson at this time added that they are working on a 
$25,000 budget, which is a State-funded project, latched onto 
the Board of Water Supply's appropriation, and that it will be 
a metal tank. 

It was moved by Commissioner Jitchaku and seconded by Commissioner 
Nakano that the public hearing be closed; motion was carried. 

SMA USE PERMIT Continuation of a public hearing on the 
COUNTY OF HAWAII application of the County of Hawaii Depart-
DEPARTMENT OF ment of Public Works for a Special Management 
PUBLIC WORKS Area (SMA) Use Permit to allow the realignment 
SOUTH HILO of Kamehameha Avenue between Mamo Street and 

Waianuenue Avenue, in the city of Hil.o, Ponahawai 
and Punahoa 1st, South Hilo, TMK: 2-3-01, 02 and 07. 

The Chair reported that as this is a continuation of a public 
hearing, staff will not be reading the background report again. 

The petitioner's representative, Chief Engineer Edward Harada, 
requested the continuation of the public hearing to allow the 
Public Works Department further .time to digest the information 
presented at their June 15th workshop, in addition to the testimony 
to be presented this. evening. 

- 12 -
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PLANNING COMM,ISSION 

Planning Department 
County of Hawaii 

HEARING TRANSCRIPT 
June 29, 1978 

A regularly advertised public hearing, on the application of the 
County of Hawaii Fire Department, was called to order at 7:00 p.m. 
in the Councilroom, County Building, South Hilo, Hawaii, with 
Chairman William F. Mielcke presiding. 

PRESENT: William F. Mielcke ABSENT: Shigeru Fujimoto 
J. Walsh Hanley 
Lorraine R. Jitchaku Ex-officio Member 
Haruo Murakami Akira Fujimoto 
Bert H. Nakano 
Alfredo Orita 
William J. Paris, Jr. 
Charles H. Sakamoto 

Sidney M. Fuke, Director 
Ilima Piianaia, Planner 

David Murakami, representing Ex-officio Member Edward 
Harada 

Lionel Meyer, Deputy Corporation Counsel 

and about 21 people in attendance 

CHAIRMAN: . We'.11 proceed with public hearings advertised for 
7 p.m. Item number four on the agenda, public hearing on the 
application of the County of Hawaii Fire Department for a Special 
Permit to allow the construction of water storage tanks for 
volunteer fire fighting purposes on 43,567 square feet of land 
situated within the State Land Use Agricultural District. The 
property involved is located on the northeastern corner of the 
intersection of Ocean View Parkway and Orchid Circle Mauka, 
Hawaiian Ocean View Estates Subdivision, Kahuku, Ka'u, TMK: 
9-2-31:19. Staff? 

PIIANAIA: (Presented background on file.) 

CHAIRMAN: Thank you, Ilima. For the benefit of the audience, 
the purpose of the Special Permit is to use land within the 
State Land Use Agricultural or . Rural District for other than 
uses permitted within these districts • . The Planning Director's 
role is to review and make recommendations to the Planning Com­
mission. The Planning Commission's role is advisory if recom­
mending for approval, adjudicatory if denial. Our responsibility 
is to conduct a public hearing after 30 days but within 120 days 
from receipt of the petition. This . affords the Commission an 
opportunity to receive information from the staff and from the 
petitioner. Public testimony will be taken. _ No testimony or .. 

EXHIBIT M 



rebuttal will be allowed after the public hearing is closed. 
Vote to close the public hearing or continue the public hearing 
will be by a majority vote. 

Members of the Commission, you have heard the staff's background 
report on the application. Do you have any questions of the 
staff? If there are no questions from the staff, the Chair at 
this time would like to invite the applicant or a representative 
of the applicant to come forward. 

Chief Thompson, we'll have to swear you in. Do you swear to tell 
the truth and nothing but the truth on this matter now before 
the. Hawaii County Planning Commission? 

THOMPSON: I do. 

CHAIRMAN: Would you please be seated and state your name 
into the microphone. 

THOMPSON: My name is Donald Thompson. I'm the Fire Chief 
for the . Hawaii County Fire Department; and this particular 
permit is set up for that particular parcel indicated by your 
staff. 

GHAIRMAN: Thank you, Chief Thompson. Do you have anything 
to add to the staff I s bac_kground report? 

THOMPSON: No, I think this covers everything with the exception 
that it may confuse the members of this board, or Commission, in 
that it was mentioned that it was a ten-mile distance to the closest 
water point, and if w,,e 're dealing with fires, we'll have to take 
double that because o f the turn-around time, which would be twenty 
miles. 

CHAIRMAN: Commissioners, do you have any qu~stions you'd like 
to direct to Chief Thompson? 

MURAKAMI: Mr. Chairman? 

CHAIRMAN: Commissioner Murakami. 

MURAKAMI: Chief Thompson, when you say, "Existing water 
storage for the fire truck is of a limited capacity", what is 
the limited capacity with the existing water tank you have now? 

THOMPSON: We have about a 5,000 gallon water tank. 

MURAKAMI: Five thousand gallons? 

THOMPSON: Yes. And the one we intend to put up would be in 
excess of 20,000. 

MURAKAMI: Twenty-thousand. 

THOMPSON: Yes. 

CHAIRMAN: Commissioner Sakamoto? 

- 2 -
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SAKAMOTO: Chief Thompson, in case of, you know, when you have 
the tank and then in case of fire and you use all the water, how 
you're going about filling up the tank? 

THOMPSON: Well, depending on the amount of water we would 
draw from that particular source; and with about 24,000 gallons 
and based on the size of hose you use, we may not exhaust or 
deplete that tank on one fire. And given the nature of the area, 
we have some rain other than during the drought area, we'll use 
its own watershed or a cover as a catchment for the water system. 

CHAIRMAN: Commissioner Orita, you have a question? 

ORITA: Chief, how many volunteers have you got in case 
you do have a fire? 

THOMPSON: Out there we have approximately 17 volunteers who 
are active in firefighting and training; but in the time of need, 
we find that this number is triple because you have a lot of 
people interested in that area and it's their property, they'll 
come out. 

CHAIRMAN: Commissioner Murakami·. 

MURAKAMI: Mr. Thomps9n, normally, what is the normal amount 
of water you use for a normal fire for a residential home? 

THOMPSON: It depends on the extent of the fire and what is 
burning. Let's take a normal home, a normal type of fire, and 
when I say normal we 1~ill usually have a fire that is a mattress­
type fire, then with the use of minimum supply of water, maybe 
150 gallons, you can remove that mattress from the building and 
only use the amount of water that you need. But if the whole 
building was enveloped, then the use of the water will not be on 
the building, but it would be used to cool off those areas, 
structures that are still standing. 

MURAKAMI: In other words, what you're saying is that the 
existing 5,000 capacity is not enough actually if you have a 
really good fire? · 

THOMPSON: That's right. 

CHAIRMAN: Both in terms of extinguishing the fire and pre-
venting it from spreading. 

THOMPSON: And preventing it from spreading. 

CHAIRMAN: Yes, staff. 

PIIANAIA: Chief Thompson, just for clarification purposes, 
in the submittals you showed two proposed water tanks. Do you 
expect to put up more than two tanks? 

THOMPSON:. Not at this time. 

PIIANAIA: In the future do you expect to put up more than two 
tanks? 

a ,. 
- 3 -



I M 

THOMPSON: Not on this site. 

PIIANAIA: Thank you. 
. 

CHAIRMAN: Commissioners, do you have any further questions 
of Chief Thompson? Chief, there does not appear to be any . further 
questions from the Commission. However, this is a public hearing 
and we'd like to ask that you remain in the audience in the 
event a question comes up that we'd like to refer to you. Thank 
you. 

Ladies and gentlemen, this is a public hearing on the application 
of the County of Hawaii Fire Department for a Special Permit. The 
Chair at this time would like to recognize anyone who would like to 

· testify either for or against this application. 

Councilman Dahlberg, we'll have to swear you in. Do you swear to 
tell the truth and nothing but the truth on this application now 
before the Hawaii County Planning Commission? 

DAHLBERG: I do. 

CHAIRMAN: Would you please be seated and state your name 
into the microphone. 

DAHLBERG: My name is Jim Dahlberg from the district of Ka'u. 
Mr. Chairman and Members of the Planning Commission, thank you 
for this opportunity to address you this evening. The people of 
the district of Ka'u have made it very clear to me as their repre­
sentative to the County Council that 24-hour fire protection and 
fire protection in general is of top priority to the district. 
And so I come before you this evening to ask you to approve of 
the putting of tanks on the property in Hawaiian Ocean View 
because this will help us to be one step closer to having that 
much more of an efficient, not only fighting fire. organization in 
the Hawaiian Ocean View Estates, but for Ka'u in general; and 
because this is of top priority to the people of Ka'u, I would 
like to please ask for .your approval this evening. I'd be happy 
to answer any questions that you might have of me. 

CHAIRMAN: Thank you, Councilman Dahlberg. Commissioners, 
do you have any questions you'd like to refer? 

MURAKAMI: Mr. Chairman? 

CHAIRMAN: Commissioner Murakami. 

MURAKAMI: Jim, can you tell me what the total cost of putting 
up a tank like this? Since you're on the Council, more or less 
you folks got an idea as to what the appropriation of it. 

DAHLBERG: Okay, I'd not familiar with. the total cost of both 
tanks or one tank; and I would refer that question to our Fire 
Chief. 

CHAIRMAN: Chief Thompson, do you have the cost estimates? 

THOMPSON: At the present time, we're working on a $25,000 
budget; and this ii not a County-funded project. _ ~his i~ a 
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project that is funded through the State and this is latched on 
to the appropriation with the Board of Water Supply. 

CHAIRMAN: And the funds have been allocated? 

THOMPSON: Yes. 

MURAKAMI: All right then let me ask you another question. 
You say you're working on $25,000 funds, what kind of a structure 
would it be constructed with, metal, concrete? 

THOMPSON: This will be a metal tank. 

CHAIRMAN: Thank you. Commissioners, any further questions 
of Councilman Dahlberg? _Thank you for your testimony. 

DAHLBERG: Thank you. 

CHAIRMAN: The Chair at this time would like to recognize 
anyone else who would like to testify either for or against 
this application. Staff, any further questions of the applicant? 

PIIANAIA: No, Mr. Chairman. 

CHAIRMAN: If there is no further testimony to come before 
the Commission, the Chair will entertain a motion to close the 
public- hearing. 

JITCHAKU: So move, Mr. Chaix,:nan. 

NAKANO: Second the motion. 

CHAIRMAN: It has been moved by Commissioner Jitchaku and 
seconded by Commissioner Nakano that the application of the 
County of Hawaii Fire Department for a Special Permit be closed. 
All those in favor so signify by saying aye? 

COMMISSIONERS: Aye. 

CHAIRMAN: Oppose, same sign? The public hearing is closed. 

Public hearing adjourned at 7:19 p.m. 

Respectfully submitted, 

Sharon M. Nomura 
Secretary 

r, 

A T ·T EST: 

/~ 
Willi~ F. Mielcke 
Chairman, Planning CommiHsf on 
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July 10, 1978 

Mr. Donald Thor;i.p.son, Fire Chief 
County of lim·mii 
Fire Departncnt 
466 Kinoola Street 
Hilo, III 96720 

Dear Chief Thompson: 

Special Permit Application 
Tax ~a~ Key 9-2- 31:1 9 

Your application will again be d i s cussed on i7et1nesday, 
July 1 9 , 197 8 , by t he Planning Con~i s sion . Th~ meetin~ will be 
held in the 1-ia I alchu I.:leit~enta r y Scltool Caf2torium, Na. ' alehu 
Village, Kaunamano, ~a'u , Hawaii, and is scheduled to begin at 
6:30 p.i:.. 

You will be notified of the Commission's decision. 

A copy of the agenda is enclosed for your information. 

Sincerely, 

~_:_ ~- '1'.r-... ~ .v,..._
CJ\_ G..,~ \' "d'"J\).,U._J 

Si<ln0y n .UFuke 
Planning Director 

smn 

Enclosure 

cc: De1:->artr,tent of \J~ ter Supply 
State Land Use Cor.~~ission 
Land Use Division , DPED 

JUL 1 0 19i8 
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SPECIAL PERMIT: COUNTY OF HAWAII FIRE DEPARTMENT 

The County of Hawaii Fire Department is requesting a Special . 

Permit to allow the construction of water storage tanks for 

volunteer fire fighting purposes and for the retention of a 

garage fo r the storage of a fire truck on 43,567 square feet of 

land situated within the· State Land Use Agricultural District. 

The property involved is located on the northeastern corner of 

the intersection of Ocean View Parkway and Orchid Circle Mauka, 

Hawaiian Ocean View Estates Subdivision, Kahuku, Ka'u (TMK: 9-2-

31:19). 

More specifically, the Fire Department is proposing to 

construct water tanks for the purpose of providing backup storage 

capacity for the fire trucks s erving this area. This request is 

also to allow the continued use of a 384-square foot garage 

constructed in 1972 for the parking of a fire truck when it is 

not in use. This building was permitted as an apparatus shed. 

However, the use of this structure for the parking of the fire 

truck is included in the Special Permit request to legitimize it. 

In support of this request, the Fire Department submitted 

the following: 

"l. Hawaiian Ocean View Estates presently has a volunteer 

fire fighting unit that utilizes a fire truck stationed 

at Tax Map Key 9-2-31:19, Lot 9, which is owned by the 

f 



County of Hawaii. Exis~ing water storage for the fire 

truck is of a limited capacity. Should a sizeable fire 

occur, the existing storage would be depleted rapidly. 

Additional storage, therefore, would be very beneficial 

to the residents in that area. 

There is also a volunteer fire fighting unit at Naalehu 

(approximately 12 miles away). With an additional storage 

of water at Hawaiian Ocean View Estates, the Naalehu fire 

truck could be used at Hawaiian Ocean View Estates through­

out the fire without having to refill at a water point 

located at Waiohinu, approximately 10 miles southeast 

of Hawaiian Ocean View Estates, which would waste precious 

time. 

"2. The proposed use would not be contrary to the objectives 

sought to be accomplished by the Land Use Law and Regula­

tions. The proposed use would, in fact, compliment the 

objectives by providing added security to those residents 

engaged in or who plan to engage in the permitted use 

of the land. 

"3. The proposed use shall not adversely affect surrounding 

properties; it will provide better fire protection. Also, 

all required setbacks and building regulations will be 

adhered to. 
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"4. The proposed use will not put any burden on public agencies 

to provide additional services. The subdivision is pri­

vately owned and maintained, and this project would only 

aid the volunteer fire fighters dependability. 

"5. With the increasing number of homes being built in 

Hawaiian Ocean View Estates, a voluntary fire fighting 

unit was established; therefore, as mentioned previously, 

this use will result in aiding those volunteers. 

"6. The land upon which the permitted use is requested was 

dedicated and conveyed to the County of Hawaii on May 4, 

1965 by Hawaiian Ocean View _Estates. Although the land 

itself is suited for the existing permitted use, it is 

not the County of Hawaii's intent to use it as such. 

"7. No alterations or changes will occur to the e~sential 

character of the land and its present use. 

11 8. Fire protection is essential to every community; therefore, 

it is felt that the requested use will make the highest 

and best use of the land involved for the public welfare." 

The General Plan Land Use Pattern Allocation Guide Map designates 

this area as Orchard. The parcel is situated within the Agricultural -

1 acre (A-la) zoned district. 
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The subject area is presently used for the ·parking of the fire 

truck. This parcel was originally dedicated to the County of Hawaii 

in May, 1965, by the developer. The use of this area was limited 

by a deed restriction solely for the purpose of establishing a 

neigborhood park and/or playground site. This deed is presently 

in the process of being amended to permit the proposed use. 

~he subject area is a portion of the Hawaiian Ocean View Estates 

Subdivision which consists of ·over 10,000 lots, approximately one 

acre in size. There are approximately 150 single family dwellings 

situated in this subdivision. The area immediately surrounding the 

subject area is presently vacant. 

Soils of the subject area consist of A'a lava. This lava type 

has practically no soil covering and is generally bare of vegetation 

except for mosses, lichens, ferns, and ohia trees. The Soil Con­

servation Service's overall capability rating for these soils is 

Class VIII. Class VIII refers to those soils and landforms that 

have limitations that preclude their use for commercial plants and 

restrict their use to recreation, wildlife, or water supply, or to 

esthetic purposes. The Land Study Bureau's Master Capability Rating 

for these soils is Class "E" or "Very Poor". Average rainfall in 

this area is 20 to 24 inches annually. 

Access to the subject area is from both Ocean View Parkway and 

Orchid Circle Mauka. These roads, which are privately owned and 
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maintained, consist of oil-treated cinder surfaces approximately 

16 feet wide within a forty (40} foot wide right-of-way. 

The water system for this area consists of individual roof 

catchment with tank storage. In addition, there is no public 

electrical service to many parts of the subdivision including the 

area under consideration. 

All other cooperating agencies had no comments on or objections 

to the subject request. 
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RECOMMENDATION: COUNTY OF HAWAII FIRE DEPARTMENT 

Upon review of the request against the guidelines for con­

sidering a Special Permit, staff is recommending that it be given 

favorable consideration based on the following findings: 

That the proposed use would not be contrary to the 

objectives sought to be accomplished by the State Land Use 

Law and Regulations. The State Land Use Law and Regulations 

are intended to preserve, protect, and encourage the develop­

ment of lands in the State for those uses to which these 

lands are best suited in the interest of public health and 

welfare of the people. 

The area under consideration is classified as Agricul­

tural by the State Land Use Commission. The Agricultural 

District does include lands surrounded by or contiguous to 

agricultural and ancillary activities by reason of topography, 

soil and other related characteristics. According to the 

United States Department of Agriculture, Soil Conservation 

Service's Soil Survey Report issued in December of 1973, the 

subject area is classified as 'A'a lava. The Soil Conserva­

tion Service's overall capability rating for this soil type 

is Class VIII. Class VIII refers to soils that have limita­

tions that preclude their use for commercial plant and restrict 

their use to recreation, wildlife, or to water supply, and to 

esthetic purpose. This class is the lowest in the Soil Con­

servation Service's ranking system for agricultural activity. 

The Land Study Bureau's overall master productivity rating 

for agricultural use is Class E or Very Poor. 



I 

Although it is still possible that some form of agricul­

tural activity may be conducted on the subject property, it 

is determined that approval of the subject request would not 

be contrary to the objectives of the State Land Use Law and 

Regulations given the capabilit y class rating of the subject 

property for agricultural productivity and the above-cited 

criterion for determining the Agricultural District classifica­

tion. 

Further, the use of the subject property for non­

agricultural purposes is not expected to have any adverse 

effect on the overall agricultural potential of the region 

or the County and State as the land is not presently being 

used for any agricultural activity. 

That the proposed use will make the highest and best 

use of the land involved for the public welfare. The subject 

request is to allow the construction of water storage tanks 

for volunteer fire fighting purposes and the retention of 

a garage for the storage of a fire truck. The granting 

of this request will provide a much needed facility for 

this area of Ka'u. The Hawaiian Ocean View Estates Sub­

division, within which the subject area is situated, 

consists of over 10,000 lots approximately one acre in 

size. There have been over 150 single family residential 

dwellings constructed within this subdivision since 1965. 

Because of this growth and the relative isolation of this 
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subdivision, a volunteer fire fighting unit was formed to 

provide fire protection. However, the nearest dependable 

water system is in the village of Waiohinu, over ten miles 

away. Consequently, when the fire truck tanks are emptied, 

the truck must be driven to Waiohinu, refilled there, then 

returned to the site of the fire which is a twenty mile 

round trip. The construction of the proposed storage tanks 

will permit the truck to~be refilled within the subdivision, 

thus significantly decreasing the distance the truck must 

travel. This will enable the truck to provide much more 

efficient service, thereby increasing its fire fighting 

capabilities. It is therefore determined that the use of 

the subject area for the proposed water tank and garage uses 

will be in the best interest of public health and welfare 

of the people, properties, and improvements of this portion 

of the County. 

Furthermore, the granting of this Special Permit request 

will be in accordance with the Public Facilities Element of 

the General Plan which states as a goal: 

"To provide public facilities that effectively 

service communities needs and to seek ways of _improving 

public service through better and more functional 

facilities which are in keeping with environmental 

and aesthetic concerns of the community." 
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That the proposed use will not have any significant 

adverse impact on surrounding areas. The only adverse 

impact associated with the proposed water tanks and garage 

facilities will be the visibility of these improvements 

from surrounding areas. However, it is determined that the 

proposed improvements will not be out of character with 

then surrounding areas. The Hawaiian Ocean View ·Estates 

Subdivision consists primarily of vacant lands and 

scattered residences. The proposed development, including 

the garage will be of a scale and manner in keeping with 

this character. Furthermore, the reasonable size of the 

subject parcel as well as surrounding areas will allow the 

siting of improvements whereby vfsual impact can be adequately 

mitigated. Furthermore, it is determined that long term 

benefits of the proposed improvements, namely increased fire 

protection, will more than offset any adverse impact which 

may occur. 

It is further recommended that the request be given favorable 

consideration subject to the following conditions: 

1. That construction commence within two (2) years of 

the effective date of approval and be completed 

within two (2) years thereafter. 

2. That all other applicable rules, regulations and 

requirements shall be complied with. 

Should any of the fore.going conditions not be met, the Special 

Permit may be d eemed null and void. 
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RECORD OF VOTING 
PLANNING COMMISSION 

County ·of Hawaii 

July 19, 1978Date 

Petitioner County of Hawaii Fire Department - Special Permit 

Preliminary hearing Public hearing Request :/ Actio 

ACTION: Approve 

---Deny 

Defer 

Continue 

Schedule for public hearing 

Other: 

, 

Commissioners Aye No -·Excused Abstain 

FUJIMOTO, Shigeru _,., 

' . 
v 

HANLEY, J. Walsh J 

JITCHAKU-, Lorraine R. i<-<-l v.· 
MURAI<AMI, Haruo 

,f' ~ 
NAKANO, Bert H. ✓ 

ORITA, Alfredo-- . 
v 

PARIS, William Jr. t/ 

SAKAMOTO, Charles . (i 'v e v · 
MIELCKE, William F. ✓ ' . . ' 
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PLANNING COMMISSION 

Planning Department 
County of Hawaii 

MINUTES 
July 19, 1978 

The Planning Commission met in regular session at 1:15 p.m. in 
the Pahoa Neighborhood Facility Community Center, Pahoa, Puna, 
Hawaii, and at 6:30 p.m. in the Na'alehu Elementary School 
Cafetorium, Na'alehu Village, Kaunamano, Ka'u, Hawaii, with 
Chairman William F. Mielcke presiding. 

PRESENT: William F. Mielcke ABSENT: Shigeru Fujimoto 
J. Walsh Hanley Haruo Murakami 
Lorraine R. Jitchaku 
Bert H. Nakano Ex-officio Member 
Alfredo Orita Akira Fujimoto 
William J. Paris, Jr. 
Charles H. Sakamoto 

Sidney M. Fuke, Director 
Ilima Piianaia, Planner 
Osamu Matsunarni, CZM Liaison Officer 

David Murakami, representing Ex-officio Member Edward 
Harada 

Lionel Meyer, Deputy Corporation Counsel 

and about 16 people in attendance at 1:15 p.m. and 
17 people at 6:30 p.m. 

All those testifying were duly sworn in. EXHIBIT IA 
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Mr. Jim Dahlberg verbally presented some research material done 
by members of the Sportsmen Club of Ka'u and pointed out that the 
club's position was that the SMA Use Permit not be approved unless 
public access along the road is guaranteed. Mr. Dahlberg said the 
following questions were raised by the club members during their 
discussions: (1) will public access to Kawaa Bay be guaranteed 
along the shoreline trail if the SMA Permit is approved; (2) will 
construction and grading of the access road, reservoir, and water 
line destroy or relocate portions of the shoreline trail if the 
Permit is approved; (3) is the public presently allowed to use the 
access road in question to reach the ocean; and (4) will the public 
be allowed to use the access road in the future to reach the 
shoreline. Mr. Dahlberg said he questioned whether the petitioner 
did in fact receive proper permission to proceed and pointed out 
that the public access concern is something that has been a right 
to the people of Ka'u for over 50 years, which is slowly being taken 
away. Upon the Commission's request, Mr. Dahlberg said he will 
be submitting a written statement to the Commis~ion later. 

For the record, staff pointed out that the Department has on file 
a certified letter sent to the petitioner's representative, Stanley 
Roehrig, asking him to address the discrepancies in the CDUA and 
SMA Permit applications. 

At this time the Deputy Corporation Counsel questioned Mr. Dahlberg 
whether he was appearing as an interested party on behalf of the 
Sportsmen Club of Ka'u. In reply, Mr Dahlberg stated that at the 
present time, he did not consider the club to be an interested 
party. 

It was moved by Commissioner Jitchaku and seconded by Commissioner 
Paris that the public hearing be continued; motion was carried. 
The Chair at this time pointed out that he will leave it to the 
staff to determine the date for continuing the public hearing. 

SPECIAL PERMIT Application of the County of Hawaii Fire Depart­
COUNTY OF HAWAII ment for a Special Permit to allow the construc­
FIRE DEPARTMENT tion of water storage tanks for volunteer fire 
KAHUKU, KA 1U fighting purposes on 43, 56 7 square .feet of land 

situated within the State Land Use Agricultural 
District. The property involved is located on the northeastern 
corner of the intersection of Ocean View Parkway and Orchid ,Circle 
Mauka, Hawaiian Ocean View Estates Subdivision, Kahuku, Ka'u, TMK: 
9-2-31:19. 

Staff presented recommendation for approval with conditions on file.· 

There was no one from the public testifying on the application. 

It was moved by Commissioner Sakamoto and seconded by Commissioner 
Jitchaku to send a favorable recommendation to the State Land Use 
Commission with the conditions outlined by the staff. A roll call 
vote was taken and motion carried with seven ayes. 
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